

# **Otolink** software





# User Manual for Otolink software

Otolink V2.27.0.31 onwards

Doc Ref: MANOLK - Issue 22

m: 15/08/2022

## **Copyright Notice**

No part of this publication may be copied by any means, translated or distributed to third parties without the express written permission of Otodynamics Ltd.

Copyright © 2022 Otodynamics Ltd. All Rights Reserved.



Otodynamics Ltd 30-38 Beaconsfield Rd Hatfield Herts AL10 8BB UK



MDSS GmbH Schiffgraben 41, 30175 Hannover, DE











# Contents

| 1 | Introduction   | 7                             |
|---|--|-------------------------------|
| 2 | Installing PC software2.1Introduction2.2Minimum PC specifications2.3Installing ILO V62.4Otolink CD menu2.5Install Otolink2.6Completing Otoport driver installation | 8<br>8<br>9<br>10<br>11<br>13 |
| 3 | Getting started<br>3.1 Connecting the Otoport<br>3.2 Opening Otolink<br>3.3 Otolink for the Otocheck LE<br>3.4 Otolink for the OtoNova and Nova-Link               | 14<br>16<br>21<br>21          |
| 4 | <ul> <li>Data download</li> <li>4.1 Otoport download options</li> <li>4.2 Downloading test data</li> <li>4.3 Wireless data download (Bluetooth)</li> </ul>         | 22<br>23<br>24<br>26          |
| 5 | Data viewer5.1Finding test records5.2Summary   | 27<br>28<br>31                |

| 6 | Data review                          | 32 |
|---|--------------------------------------|----|
|   | 6.1 Patient details                  | 33 |
|   | 6.2 TEOAE results                    | 34 |
|   | 6.3 DPOAE results                    | 37 |
|   | 6.4 DP Growth (Otoport Advance only) | 40 |
|   | 6.5 ABR results                      | 43 |
| 7 | Printing                             | 49 |
| • | , internet                           | 10 |
|   | 7.1 Print button                     | 49 |
|   | 7.2 Print format                     | 54 |
|   | 7.3 Customisation                    | 54 |
|   | 7.4 Print from File menu             | 57 |
|   | 8.1 Export                           | 59 |
|   | 8.2 Export to PDF                    | 66 |
|   | 8.3 Transfer                         | 67 |
|   | 8.4 Archive                          | 68 |
|   | 8.5 Import                           | 68 |
|   | 8.6 Delete                           | 69 |
|   | 8.7 Database functions               | 69 |
|   | 8.8 Edit details                     | 72 |
|   | 8.9 Edit History                     | 74 |
| 9 | Otolink NOAH 4 module                | 76 |
| • |                                      | 10 |

| 9.1 | Installing the Otolink NOAH module | 76 |
|-----|------------------------------------|----|
| 9.2 | Otoport use with NOAH 4            | 76 |
| 9.3 | NOAH configuration                 | 77 |
| 9.4 | Test NOAH patient                  | 78 |
| 9.5 | Download Tests to NOAH Patient     | 80 |
| 9.6 | Registration                       | 81 |

# 10 GDT

82 82

82 84 85

| 10.1 | Using GDT with Otolink              |
|------|-------------------------------------|
| 10.2 | Configuring Otolink for GDT         |
| 10.3 | Using your Otoport with GDT         |
| 10.4 | Configuring GDT software (Turbomed) |

| 11 | Abou | it & Language                 | 87  |
|----|------|-------------------------------|-----|
|    | 11.1 | Bluetooth device status       | 88  |
|    | 11.2 | Automatic updates             | 88  |
|    | 11.3 | Language                      | 89  |
| 12 | Firm | ware updates                  | 90  |
|    | 12.1 | Updates                       | 90  |
|    | 12.2 | Services                      | 93  |
| 13 | User | profiles                      | 94  |
|    | 13.1 | Otolink user security         | 94  |
|    | 13.2 | Adding and editing users      | 95  |
|    | 13.3 | Otolink Login                 | 96  |
| 14 | Work | dist                          | 97  |
|    | 14.1 | Add a new patient             | 98  |
|    | 14.2 | Worklist file management      | 99  |
| 15 | Cust | om settings                   | 101 |
|    | 15.1 | Start-up/Shutdown             | 101 |
|    | 15.2 | Wired Download                | 102 |
|    | 15.3 | Bluetooth Download            | 103 |
| 16 | Otop | ort configuration             | 106 |
|    | 16.1 | Test modes                    | 107 |
|    | 16.2 | Users                         | 108 |
|    | 16.3 | Facility & Risk               | 109 |
|    | 16.4 | Other Options                 | 110 |
|    | 16.5 | Saving configuration changes  | 111 |
|    | 16.6 | Configuration File menu       | 112 |
|    | 16.7 | Configuration for Otocheck LE | 112 |

| 17 | Troubleshooting  | 113 |
|----|--|-----|
|    | <ul> <li>17.1 Otolink communication problems</li> <li>17.2 Cannot access Otolink database and<br/>Otoport not recognised when connected</li> </ul> | 113 |
|    | via USB  | 114 |
| 18 | Symbol explanations  | 116 |

# 1 Introduction

All references in this manual to 'Otoport' refer to all Otoport family models, including Otocheck.

Otolink is a software package designed to get the most out of your Otoport.

The easy to use interface enables you to:

- · Download test data
- · View and manage test data
- · Export test data in a range of formats
- · Print test data
- · Upload worklists to your Otoport
- · Update your Otoport with new firmware releases

On advanced Otoport models you may also:

- · Configure your Otoport
- · Transfer Otoport data into Otodynamics ILO V6 software

# 2 Installing PC software

# 2.1 Introduction

There are several stages to Otolink installation and they should be conducted in the order detailed below. Prior to the installation close all programs running on your PC.

Note:

You will require Windows Administrator privileges to complete this installation. Please contact your IT administrator if you do not have this level of PC access.

To ensure smooth Otolink installation and operation, it is recommended that User account control (UAC) is turned off, or set to the lowest level on Windows 10 & 11.

Installation of Otolink must be in fully protected PCs and secure networks.

Observe good Information security management practices per EN ISO/IEC 27001 standard.

# <sup>2.2</sup> Minimum PC specifications

#### Processor Pentium III 1GHz

**Operating System** Windows 10 & 11

## RAM

1024 MB minimum

## **Otolink installation**

Hard disk: 50MB min free

V6 installation Hard disk: 50MB min free

**CDR / DVDR** Recommended for database archiving and backup

# <sup>2.3</sup> Installing ILO V6

The Otoport you have purchased may be supplied with the ILO V6 software as standard, it is also available as an option. For most data types, ILO V6 is not essential for the review of data on the PC, as data can be viewed in Otolink. ILO V6 software can be used for clinical data review and data management.

If you are going to use ILO V6, it should be installed before Otolink is installed - refer to the ILO V6 manual for installation instructions. If the installation is solely for viewing Otoport data, ensure that ILO V6 is installed with the OAE instrument type set to Otoport Viewer / Training mode.

# 2.4 Otolink CD menu

Insert the Otolink CD into your CD-ROM drive. The menu below will be displayed.



Select the various options using a left mouse click.

Install Otolink

This will begin the Otolink software installation.

## Manual

This opens the Manual, for on-screen viewing.

Browse CD

This allows the contents of the CD to be viewed.

Otodynamics.com

This will open the Otodynamics website on your web browser (your PC will need to be connected to the internet).

## Register

Select this option to register your software with Otodynamics.

# 2.5 Install Otolink

Select Install Otolink from the CD menu.

Otolink installation comprises a number of stages which vary according to whether Otolink has previously been installed on your PC. The installation process also installs the USB drivers required for the Otoport to communicate with the PC.



Follow the on-screen instructions, selecting Next when necessary.

Select the tick/check box to 'Always trust software from Otodynamics Ltd' and then click **Install**.

## 12 | CHAPTER TWO Installing PC software

During installation, you may see the following message:



A message is displayed when installation is complete. Before pressing the **Finish** button, it is recommended that your Otoport is connected to the PC using the cable provided. Otolink will then automatically be configured for your Otoport type and where necessary drivers will be updated or installed.

Select Finish.



Following the installation, Otolink will automatically run. Shortcuts to the Otolink Suite and Otolink Data Viewer will be placed on your PC desktop. To start Otolink manually, double-click either icon.



### Note:

If it is necessary to uninstall Otolink, re-start your PC following this process prior to reinstallation of the software.

# <sup>2.6</sup> Completing Otoport driver installation

Otoport drivers were loaded onto your PC during the Otolink installation. To complete the driver installation, follow the instructions below.

# 2.6.1 For Windows 10 & 11

Connect the Otoport to the PC (see section 3.1) and Windows will automatically complete the driver installation process.

# 3 Getting started

# 3.1 Connecting the Otoport

Plug the Otoport into the PC using the PC download cable provided. Do not connect more than one Otoport to the same PC at any one time.

The end with USB symbol (fig 1) should be connected to a USB socket on the PC (fig 2).



The Otoport connector should be plugged into the bottom of the Otoport with the arrow facing upwards (fig 3).

If the cables provided with your Otoport have a locking connector (fig 4), squeeze the release keys at the sides of the connector when inserting or removing the plug.





If the Otoport is off when connected, a battery charge graphic will be displayed on the Otoport screen, indicating the current battery level.

If the Otoport is on when connected to the PC and Otolink software is running, the Otoport will continue to display the screen shown at the time of connection. It is not possible to control the Otoport until disconnected from the PC.

Once connected, Otolink will automatically detect the Otoport. After a few seconds a window will appear on your PC screen stating 'Talking to Otoport'.

When the Otoport is connected, Otolink will automatically open to the download screen (see section 3.2). If this does not happen, then there may be a problem with your Otolink or USB driver installation. Try reinstalling Otolink from the CD (section 2.4). If this does not resolve the problem, refer to the troubleshooting guide (chapter 17).

# 3.2 Opening Otolink

Otolink will automatically start each time your PC is started depending on user settings configured within **Custom Settings** (section 15.1). The software will run in low PC memory usage mode until an Otoport is detected. The shortcut icons on the PC desktop will manually start Otolink if necessary.

There are three routes for accessing Otolink functions - the **Data Download** window, the **tray icon** and the **shortcut icons**.





# 3.2.1 Data Download window

| Data Download                 |                       |       | ×            |
|-------------------------------|-----------------------|-------|--------------|
| Otoport                       | Downloa               | nd    |              |
| Battery Charge:               |                       |       |              |
| Number of patients stored:    |                       |       | 1/2 SI #     |
| Number of tests stored:       |                       |       |              |
| PC Date and Time:             |                       | Sume  | time with DC |
| Otoport Date and Time:        |                       | Sync  | une wurre    |
| Download Options              |                       |       |              |
| Delete Test Data from Otoport | ?                     | C Yes |              |
| Only Download New Test Data   | ?                     | C Yes | ⊙ No         |
| Open EZ-Screen/V6 after Dow   | nload?                | C Yes |              |
| Otolink Suite                 | Download              | CI    | ose          |
|                               | and the second second | -     |              |

The Data Download window will open when selecting the Data Download icon from the Otolink Suite area or when connecting the Otoport whilst the software is active within the tray.

### Note:

The **Data Download** window area of the Otolink software will only open when an Otoport is connected to the PC. If there is no Otoport connected, the software will display the message **No Otoport connected**. **Please check connection from PC to Otoport and retry. Ensure the Otoport is connected correctly and retry**. Additionally if configuring Wired Download to be ON (section 15.2), the download of data from the Otoport will commence automatically and the Data Download screen will not be shown.

# 18 CHAPTER THREE Getting started

# 3.2.2 Otolink tray icon



An **Otolink tray icon** will be placed in your system tray on the bottom right of your PC screen.

Left-click on the Otolink tray icon to open the Data Download window.

Right-click on the **Otolink tray icon** to open a pop-up menu:

|   | Data Download    |
|---|------------------|
|   | Otolink Suite    |
|   | Data Viewer      |
|   | User Profiles    |
|   | About & Language |
| 5 | Exit             |
| h |                  |

Data Download - Data Download window.

Otolink Suite - Central control area.

Data Viewer - View downloaded test data.

User Profiles - Turn on Otolink user security.

**About & Language** - Information about Otolink, the Otoport connected and language selection.

Exit - Close Otolink.

# 3.2.3 Shortcut icons



Shortcut icons are placed on the desktop. Double-click on either icon to open the relevant area of Otolink as described in the following sections.

# 3.2.4 Otolink Suite



**Otolink Suite** is the central control area for the Otolink package. The functions that are available depend on the Otoport model in use. Functions available are also controlled by two levels of Otolink user. Administrators will have access to all areas. Users without admin rights will only have access to the **Data Viewer**, **Data Download**, **Patient Worklist** and **About & Language** areas. Select each icon with the mouse, or scroll through them using the tab key and press Enter.



The top area of the screen has an Otoport **Battery Charge** indicator showing the Otoport battery level. The charge percentage is given adjacent to the graphic. This area also displays the three character GSN (unique machine ID) of the Otoport connected.

If Otolink Suite is opened when an Otoport is not connected, the GSN will read 'No otoport connected' and the Battery Charge indicator will be empty.

### **Firmware Updates**

Enables the Otoport to be updated with files supplied by Otodynamics.

#### Data Viewer

Allows downloaded data to be viewed.

#### **User Profiles**

Enables Login to be turned on and off and user accounts to be set up.

### About & Language

Information about Otolink, the Otoport connected and language selection.

#### **Data Download**

Opens the data download window.

#### **Patient Worklist**

Enables lists of patients for testing to be entered on the PC before upload to the Otoport.

#### **Custom Settings**

Sets auto download and auto start up options.

### **Otoport Configuration**

Enables test parameters to be set and saved on the PC before upload to the Otoport.

#### Manuals

Provides access to Otoport and Otolink manuals.

On the right are scrolling icons that provide links to the Otodynamics website, giving product related information that may be of interest, i.e. NOAH 4 compatibility.

# 3.3 Otolink for the Otocheck LE

Otolink functions for the Otocheck LE are more limited than for the other products in the Otoport range.

Data download is not available and the download window will not automatically appear on connection. The worklist function is also unavailable. The Config function is limited to turning configurability on the unit on or off (see section 16.7).

# <sup>3.4</sup> Otolink for the OtoNova and Nova-Link

Data download is available for Otolink tests and the download window will automatically appear on connection. Before tests are available for download they must be exported in Nova-Link. See the OtoNova manual for full details. The Worklist function and Configuration functions are not available.

# 4 Data download

| )ownloa  |  | 1.000  |
|----------|--|--|
|          | ×.   |  |
| 11       |  | Litter,  |
| 2        |  |  |
|          |  |  |
|          | 0.   |  |
|          | Sync Sync  | time with PC   |
|          |  |  |
|          | C Yes  | ⊙ No   |
|          | C Yes  | No   |
| d?       | C Yes  | ⊙ No   |
| Download | C cl   | ose  |
|          | 10<br>2<br>2<br>02/04/2012 14:21:09<br>02/04/2012 13:20:13<br>17<br>17<br>Download | 2<br>2<br>02/04/2012 14:21:09<br>02/04/2012 13:20:13 |

The **Otoport Download** screen provides download options and Otoport information.

It is possible to skip this step and download tests automatically as soon as the Otoport is connected. See chapter 15 **Custom settings** for details.

An Otoport **Battery Charge** indicator provides information on the Otoport battery level and the charge percentage is given adjacent to the graphic.

The number of patients and number of tests stored on the Otoport are displayed for information.

The PC and Otoport dates and times are displayed. Select **Sync time with PC** to synchronise the Otoport date and time with the PC's.

A shortcut to the Otolink suite area is provided.

## Note:

Ensure the PC date and time are correct before you synchronise the date and time.

DO NOT set to an earlier date if there is data on the Otoport.

# 4.1 Otoport download options

Download Options are provided in the bottom half of the screen.

# 4.1.1 Delete Test Data from Otoport?

This option enables the deletion of Otoport data following successful download.

Select **Yes** to delete the data or **No** to leave the data stored on the Otoport. If **Yes** is selected a confirmation message will appear after the download is complete.

# 4.1.2 Only Download New Test Data?

If **Yes** is selected, then Otolink will only download tests which were recorded after the latest test for that unit in the Otolink Data Viewer.

If No is selected, then Otolink will download all the tests on the Otoport.

It may be useful to select **No** in order to retrieve tests which have been deleted from the Data Viewer but are still on the Otoport.

Test records which are currently in the Otolink database will not be duplicated in either case.

### Note:

If a patient name and/or ID is edited in V6 software and the same data is downloaded again with the original patient details, the edited and unedited patient will then be present in the V6 database.

# 4.1.3 Open EZ•Screen/V6 after Download?

This function provides the option to automatically open V6 software following download of data (if V6 is installed). This is useful if you wish to review the Otoport data at the time of download. Alternatively V6 can be opened using the shortcut provided on your PC desktop.

Select **Yes** to open V6 or select **No** if you do not wish to open V6. If you choose to open V6, see the V6 manual for more information.

V6 download is not available for all Otoport models. The download function is greyed out and inactive if the function is not provided with the Otoport connected or if V6 is not installed.

# 4.2 Downloading test data

Once you have chosen your desired download options, select **Download** to initiate the download. Select **Close** to exit the **Download Options** screen.

During the download process a sequence of **Otoport download** screens will appear. Each screen has a progress bar, which indicates progress of each sub task. When the progress bar is full the sub task is 100% complete.

As standard there are three sub-tasks. First, the required Otoport configuration data is downloaded. The software then builds a list of patients to download. The sub task states **Building download list**. Finally, the data is downloaded and the sub task states **Downloading data**.

When the download is complete the **Download data** screens will close. If you have selected to delete the Otoport data, the delete confirmation screen will appear. Select **Yes** to delete the data or **No** to leave the data stored on the Otoport.

All the Otoport data has been downloaded and is available for viewing in a **Data Viewer**, which will automatically open (see use with V6 below).

If V6 is installed, all the data will be transferred to this software for review. An additional subtask progress bar is displayed during the download process and states **Importing data**. A confirmation message appears at the end of the process to confirm the data has been transferred to V6. See the appropriate manual for details. The data is also available via the **Data viewer**, which will automatically be shown if V6 isn't running or set to open when data is downloaded.

## 4.2.1 V6 data notes

The OAE waveform response from the Otoport is reprocessed in V6 and all of the OAE data is recalculated from this waveform. You may notice up to 0.2dB difference in signal and noise values. The total noise is 3dB different. The test outcome and band passes will not be affected as these are imported directly from the Otoport.

The stimulus level is recalculated from the stimulus waveform and a variation of a few dB may be observed.

The units for noise reject reported in V6 are in mPa. The Otoport units are in dB SPL.

Data that has the 'Noisy' or 'Poor probe fit' stop reasons may have incorrect NLo/NHi values in V6.

Total DPOAE level in DP Zoom and DP 12 frequency tests:

ILOV6 uses a different method to calculate the DPOAE level from the Otoport. Otolink displays the level recorded on the Otoport. So the total DPOAE level shown in ILOV6 and Otolink will be different. Other DPOAE test types (which test in half octave steps) are unaffected.

# 4.3 Wireless data download (Bluetooth)

If your Otoport and PC are Bluetooth enabled you can download test data wirelessly. The download is initiated from the Otoport (see your Otoport manual for details).

The following screen is displayed when Otolink is processing tests wirelessly downloaded, which are then available in the Dataviewer



See section 15 **Custom settings** for how to setup Bluetooth data download.

Notes & trouble shooting:

If the Otolink Suite and sub-modules are in use then Otolink will wait before adding any new data downloaded wirelessly from the Otoport. A message is displayed in the Otolink suite to indicating new data is available to auto import. If the Dataviewer is open this will automatically be closed to allow new data to be processed.

If the Otoport fails to connect to Otolink or data fails to download, try each of the following points and see if the problem is resolved.

1. Turn the Otoport off and then on.

2. Switch the Otopot on and select Config > System > Setup and change the Bluetooth option to Print and press save. Then switch the Bluetooth option back to 'PC-Load' and press save again.

3. Disable and then re-enable the PC Bluetooth module.

4. Remove the Otoport from the device and printers list and pair the device with the PC again.

5. Reinstall the drivers for the Bluetooth module on the PC.

# 5 Data viewer



| atabase Search Filters |          |               |         |                   |           |                   |             |                    |       |
|------------------------|----------|---------------|---------|-------------------|-----------|-------------------|-------------|--------------------|-------|
| Name                   |          |               |         |                   |           |                   |             |                    |       |
|                        |          |               |         |                   | ID        |                   |             | Reset Filte        | ers   |
| Test Type Any          | ▼ Tester | ID Any        | -       | Otoport ID Any    |           | Probe ID Any      | v •         | New Data           |       |
| Download Date          | _        | Test          | Date    |                   |           | Date Of Birth     |             |                    |       |
|                        |          |               | oute    | 00/01/0010        |           |                   | 0/40/4000   |                    |       |
| Start   17/04/2013     |          |               | Start   | 20/01/2012        |           | Start             | 30/12/1899  |                    |       |
| End 11/10/2013         |          | *             | End     | 17/04/2013        |           | End 2             | 23/01/2012  |                    | *     |
| iltered Records        |          |               |         |                   |           |                   |             |                    |       |
| Select All             | 2 C      | ear All       |         | Drint 🔒           |           | Test NOAH Patient |             | Data Review        |       |
| Name                   | ID       | Date Of Birth | n Ear   | Date/Time of Test | Tester ID | Download Date/Tim | e Test Type | Test Result        | Π     |
| Jones                  | JGMN4H00 | 23/01/2012    | Left    | 17/04/2013 10:19  | ADN       | 17/04/2013 10:19  | DP          | Poor Probe Fit     |       |
| 🖵 Jones                | JGMN4H00 | 23/01/2012    | Right   | 23/01/2012 10:43  | ADN       | 11/10/2013 15:54  | DP          | DPOAE Pass         |       |
| Jones                  | JGMN4H00 | 23/01/2012    | Left    | 23/01/2012 10:45  | ADN       | 11/10/2013 15:54  | DP          | Too Few Bands      |       |
| Jones                  | JGMN4H00 | 23/01/2012    | Left    | 23/01/2012 10:45  | ADN       | 11/10/2013 15:54  | DP          | DPOAE Pass         |       |
| Jones                  | JGMN4H00 | 23/01/2012    | Right   | 23/01/2012 10:49  | ADN       | 11/10/2013 15:54  | DP          | DPOAE Pass         |       |
| 🔽 Jones                | JGMN4H00 | 23/01/2012    | Left    | 23/01/2012 10:50  | ADN       | 11/10/2013 15:54  | DP          | DPOAE Pass         | ι.    |
| elected: 0             |          |               |         |                   |           |                   | 234         | out of 234 tests f | ilter |
| ummary                 |          |               |         |                   |           |                   |             |                    |       |
| Name Jones             |          |               |         |                   |           |                   |             | view. The set      |       |
| ID JGMN4               | 4H00     |               | Protoc  | O ANY3BANDS       | 2         |                   |             | 0 0 0              |       |
| Ear Left               |          | Te            | est Tyr | pe DP             | -         | 30]               |             | TT                 |       |
| Result DPOAE           | Pass     | 1             | Filenan | ne MJTM1N39       | WW        | _ 20              |             |                    | -     |
| DPOAE 16.7 dE          | 3SPL     | R             | esoluti | on 1/2 Octave     |           | 2 10              | n in t      |                    |       |
| Stimulus 70 / 70       | dBSPL    |               | Durati  | on 6 sec          | V         | 0+                |             | ••••               | 1     |
| Start Freg. 1500 H     | z        |               |         |                   |           | -10               |             |                    |       |

The **Data Viewer** opens automatically following data download unless used with V6 (see section 4.2. for use with V6). It can also be accessed from the tray icon menu, from the shortcut icon or through Otolink Suite. The **Data Viewer** displays and manages downloaded Otoport data. Records are shown alphabetically by name.

Summary shows information for the test highlighted.

# 5.1 Finding test records

| ile <u>D</u> ata Management |  |                  |
|-----------------------------|--|------------------|
| Database Search Filters     |  |                  |
| Name                        | D                                      | Reset Filters    |
| Test Type Any Test          | er ID Any                              | Probe ID Any     |
| Download Date               | Test Date                              | Date Of Birth    |
| Start 12/04/2013            | <ul> <li>Start 02/04/2013 .</li> </ul> | Start 30/12/1899 |
|                             | The Instantion of the                  | F                |

**Name** or **ID** fields may be partially entered providing partial entry filter functions. If the complete **Name** or **ID** is entered, only exact matches will be displayed. The **Filtered Records** list will be updated so that it displays only those tests which match the data entered. Deleting the contents of these fields will remove the filtering.

You can filter records by Test type, Tester ID, Otoport ID or Probe ID.

The **Download Date**, **Test Date** and **Date of Birth** fields enable date ranges to be selected. The default settings for these fields include all records in the database. Date format is Day / Month / Year. Dates may be selected by highlighting the day, month or year. Changes can be made either by entering values on the keyboard or by scrolling up and down with the mouse or keypad arrow keys. The records list will be automatically updated to show only results filtered by this criteria.

If the **New Data** button is selected, then only the most recently downloaded tests are displayed. The **New Data** button is selected as default when the Data Viewer automatically opens after data download to make the finding of new tests easier.

Filter fields are shaded when that filter is in use.

The **Reset Filters** button resets all filters so that all of the records are displayed.

# 5.1.1 Selecting a record to view

When you have set the filters you require you may view the results in the **Filtered Records** section. If no filters have been set all downloaded records will be available.

The bottom right of the filtered records area reports the number of tests filtered compared to the total number of tests in the database.

# 5.1.2 Selecting individual tests

| Select All | 2 Cle      | ear All       |       | less Print        | -         | Data Review        |           |             |
|------------|------------|---------------|-------|-------------------|-----------|--------------------|-----------|-------------|
| Name       | ID         | Date Of Birth | Ear   | Date/Time of Test | Tester ID | Download Date/Time | Test Type | Test Result |
| 5.6-8      | 3-EAR-T    | 01/04/2021    | Left  | 01/04/2021 10:04  | ADN       | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP        | DP SNR OK   |
| 5.6-8, E   | 3-EAR-T    | 01/04/2021    | Right | 01/04/2021 10:07  | ADN       | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP        | DP SNR OK   |
| 5.6-8      | 3-EAR-T    | 01/04/2021    | Left  | 01/04/2021 10:11  | TST       | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP        | DP SNR OK   |
| 5.6-8      | 3-EAR-T    | 01/04/2021    | Right | 01/04/2021 10:15  | ADN       | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP        | DP SNR OK   |
| 5.6-8      | 3-EAR-T    | 01/04/2021    | Left  | 01/04/2021 10:18  | ADN       | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP        | DP SNR OK   |
| 5.6-8      | 3-CAVITY-T | 01/04/2021    | Left  | 01/04/2021 09:42  | ADN       | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP        | DPZ Test    |

Use the up and down arrows on your PC keyboard or your mouse to select an individual test.

Clicking on any of the column titles will sort the data by that field. Clicking a second time will reverse the sort order.

Tests which met the pass criteria set on the Otoport will be highlighted in green.

The currently selected test will appear in bold type and an arrow will be shown beside the record on the left margin.

The details for the selected test are available in the **Summary** section and in **Data review** (see chapter 6).

# 5.1.3 Selecting multiple tests

In order that a number of tests may be processed (printed, deleted etc.) in a batch, it is possible to select multiple tests. Tests can be selected by clicking on the check box on the left of the table. A check mark indicates that the test has been selected. To deselect a test, click on the check mark again.

Alternatively, all of the filtered records can be selected using the **Select All** button.

The currently selected records can be cleared by clicking the **Clear All** button.

The number of records currently selected is shown at the bottom of the table.

The selected tests can be processed using the options in the **File** or **Data Management** menus or the **Print** shortcuts (see chapter 8 **Printing**).

If no tests have been selected using the check boxes and Export, Transfer or Archive are chosen from the Data Management menu, then the user has the option to process all of the currently filtered tests.



# 5.1.4 Right-click menu

| Select All | 2 Clear All |                   |                   | Drint 😓           |      | Cartest NOAH Patient |                    | Data Review    |               |  |
|------------|-------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|------|----------------------|--------------------|----------------|---------------|--|
|            | ID          | Date Of Birth Ear |                   | Date/Time of Test |      | Tester ID            | Download Date/Time | Test Type      | Test Result   |  |
| Jones      | JGMN4H00    | 23/01             | Delete Test(s)    | 9                 | ADN  | 17/04/2013 10:19     | DP                 | Poor Probe Fit |               |  |
| Jones      | JGMN4H00    | 23/0              |                   | resu(s)           | З    | ADN                  | 11/10/2013 15:54   | DP             | DPOAE Pass    |  |
| Jones      | JGMN4H00    | 23/0              | Delete Patient(s) |                   | 5    | ADN                  | 11/10/2013 15:54   | DP             | Too Few Bands |  |
| Jones      | JGMN4H00    | 23/0              | Edit Det          | tails             | 5    | ADN                  | 11/10/2013 15:54   | DP             | DPOAE Pass    |  |
| Jones      | JGMN4H00    | 23/01             | Data Re           | view              | 9    | ADN                  | 11/10/2013 15:54   | DP             | DPOAE Pass    |  |
| Jones      | JGMN4H00    | 23/01/2           | 012 Left          | 23/01/2012 1      | 0:50 | ADN                  | 11/10/2013 15:54   | DP             | DPOAE Pass    |  |

If a test in the Filtered Records is selected using a right-click, the options **Delete Test(s)**, **Delete Patient(s)**, **Edit Details** and **Data Review** can be selected.

See chapters 6 and 8 for Data review and Data management.

# 5.2 Summary

The **Summary** area shows the patient name and ID of the selected test, as well as the **Test type**, **Ear** tested and the test **File name**. Icons also provide a graphic representation of the test type, result and ear.

Summary data for different test types are also shown, which is explained in the following sections. A test result graph is displayed that includes valid band/test point indicators.

For ABR results a circle is shown that represents test progress towards a pass when it was stopped. A full circle is shown in green if the test met the pass criteria and partially filled circles are shown in amber that didn't pass, with the level of circle fill representing how close the data was to reaching the pass criteria.

The data available depends on the Otoport model used and on the type of test performed. The fields for the different test types are explained in the **Data review** section that follows.

Note:

Valid bands are not shown for Otocheck Screener, Otoport Lite, DP Clinical + TE or Otoport Flexi models on tests where the pass criterion is judged on total OAE rather than on individual bands (Wide Band or Narrow modes).

# 6 Data review



Click on the **Data review** button or the test result graph to show the **Data review** module, which provides detailed graphical and numerical test and patient data.

The screen is made up of various sections, which can be expanded or reduced using the blue and yellow arrows.

There are labelled tabs in some sections, which reveal additional information.

If normative data limits were set on the Otoport, they will be displayed in **Data review**.

Data is highlighted in yellow (or in bold on the printouts) to draw attention to test quality issues. Stimulus level achieved, stimulus stability/percentage OK, waveform reproducibility, rejected data percentage and duration are included.

ABR specific test quality alerts include the Fsp and ABR noise levels.

It is possible to enable or disable the **Test data quality alerts** in the **Configuration** area.

It is also possible to open Datareview for individual test results by double clicking on the test result file. By default files are saved to C:\Program files\ Otodynamics and stored in sub folders of Dtafiles (TEOAE data), DPGfiles (DPOAE data) or ABRfiles (ABR data). But files can be opened from any location and this could be useful when reviewing archived files. Supported file name extensions are .otoTE, .otoDPG, .otoDPZ, .otoABR and also .Dta.

Note:

Otoport Lite and Otocheck models show the **Patient details** and **Test details** sections and do not include the graphs or numerical tables for OAE tests, but these are included for ABR results.

# 6.1 Patient details

The **Patient Details** tab displays detailed biographical information. Not all of the displayed fields are available on the Otoport, but they can be entered in **Edit Details** (see section 7.7)

The patient name and ID are also displayed in the window header for quick reference.

# 6.2 **TEOAE results**



# 6.2.1 Test details

### Result

The outcome of the test.

## Ear

The Left or Right ear tested.

### **Target stim**

The target stimulus level set for the test.

### Protocol

The test mode set on the Otoport when the test was performed.

### Noise reject

The noise reject level as it was set at the end of the test.

## TEOAE

Displays the total TEOAE across a wide frequency range.

### Noise

Displays the total noise across a wide frequency range.

## Reproducibility

Measure of the reproducibility (correlation) between the two waveforms recorded during a TEOAE test.

## Duration

The duration of the test in seconds.

## Fit Size (0-9)

The size of the ear canal, on a scale of 1 (small) to 9 (large), indicated by the stimulus intensity recorded during Checkfit.

## Achieved stim

The stimulus level achieved at the Checkfit stage of the test.

### Stim. Stability

The % correlation between the stimulus recorded at the beginning of the test and that present at the end of the test. A high level indicates that test conditions were good and there was little probe movement. A low level indicates significant probe movement.

### **Rejected Data**

The percentage of data rejected. NHi - The amount of data rejected due to noise being above the noise reject level. NLo - The amount of data accepted due to noise being below the noise reject level.

## **Otoport ID**

The GSN (unique machine ID) of the machine used for the test.

### **ABR Module ID**

The identification number of the ABR module if used during the TEOAE test. A dash is shown if no ABR module was used.

### **Tester ID**

The ID of the tester who performed the test. If Otoport login is not turned on, this field will always show ADN. This is the Otoport default Admin account.

## Probe ID

The serial number of the probe used in the test.

### File name

The name of the data file created for the test.

### Firmware

The revision of Otoport firmware used during the test.

# 6.2.2 Checkfit stimulus

All the stimulus data is collected during the **Checkfit** period before the test starts.

A numerical level of the achieved stimulus is displayed.

A stimulus waveform graph shows a time based (ms) view. With a good probe fit the waveform should have an initial large positive and then negative peak followed by a flat line response.

A spectrum shows how the energy in the stimulus waveform is distributed over frequencies (kHz). This distribution is dependent on the fit of the probe and the geometry of the individual ear canal.

Note:

On Otocheck Screener, Otoport Lite, DP Clinical or Otoport Flexi devices, to optimise speed of testing, a lowcut filter is used during Checkfit. The stimulus display therefore doesn't show low frequency energy, as this has been filtered out, but the stimulus delivered will contain a broad frequency spectrum.

## 6.2.3 Response

### Waveform

The response waveform displays the two interleaved OAE waveforms (named A and B). Waveform A is shown in white and waveform B in yellow.

## **Frequency spectrum**

The response spectrum screen shows the signal and noise levels recorded in 80Hz frequency bands. This is the information which is summarised by the half-octave histogram but the response spectrum displays the data at a much higher frequency resolution.

## Graph

Test data is displayed graphically on the histogram screen in  $\frac{1}{2}$  octave bands: 1k, 1.5k, 2k, 3k, 4k and 6kHz (optional for Otoport Advance or Otoport Screener only). The blue section of each band represents the OAE signal level within each band and the red section represents the noise level at that frequency.

A band indicator is shown above the graph if the band meets the set criteria.

## Table

Displays the signal and noise sound levels at the specified half octave frequencies and the Signal-to-Noise Ratio (signal minus noise). If the OAE at this frequency has met the set criteria then the SNR value is shown on a green background.
# DPOAE results

6.3



# 6.3.1 Test details

#### Result

The outcome of the test.

#### Ear

The Left or Right ear tested.

#### **Target stim**

The target intensities for the primary stimulus levels L1 and L2.

#### Protocol

The test mode set on the Otoport when the test was performed.

#### Start Freq.

The lowest frequency tested.

#### End Freq.

The highest frequency tested.

#### Resolution

The number of frequencies to be tested per octave.

#### Noise mode

Noise mode reports the method by which the noise floor in DP tests was calculated. Rapid is the mean of the frequency bins close to the DP frequency and is most suitable for screening. Standard is the mean + 2 standard deviations and is more suitable for clinical diagnostics.



#### Noise reject

The noise reject level as it was set at the end of the test.

#### DPOAE

Displays the total DPOAE summed over the tested frequencies.

#### Duration

The duration of the test in seconds.

#### Fit Size (0-9)

The size of the ear canal, on a scale of 1 (small) to 9 (large), indicated by the stimulus intensity recorded during Checkfit.

#### Stim OK

The percentage of the presented stimuli that were within 1dB of the levels achieved during calibration.

#### **Rejected Data**

The percentage of data rejected NHi - The amount of data rejected due to noise being above the noise reject level. NLo - The amount of data accepted due to noise being below the noise reject level.

#### **Otoport ID**

The GSN (unique machine ID) of the machine used for the test.

#### **ABR Module ID**

The identification number of the ABR module if used during the DPOAE test. A dash is shown if no ABR module was used.

#### **Tester ID**

The ID of the tester who performed the test. If Otoport login is not turned on, this field will always show ADN. This is the Otoport default Admin account.

#### Probe ID

The serial number of the probe used in the test.

#### File name

The name of the data file created for the test.

#### Firmware

The revision of Otoport firmware used during the test.

## 6.3.2 Checkfit stimulus

All the stimulus data is collected during the **Checkfit** period before the test starts. DPOAE testing requires two stimulus channels and channel A is shown in white and channel B in yellow.

A numerical level of the achieved stimulus is displayed for each channel.

A stimulus waveform graph shows a time based (ms) view produced by each of the stimulus channels. With a good probe fit the waveform should have an initial large positive and then negative peak followed by a flat line response.

A spectrum shows how the energy in the stimuli waveforms are distributed over frequencies (kHz). This distribution is dependent on the fit of the probe and the geometry of the individual ear canal.

### 6.3.3 Response

#### Graph

Test data is displayed graphically on the graph screen at the frequency points tested. The blue section of each band represents the OAE signal level within each band and the red section represents the noise level at that frequency.

A test point indicator is shown above the graph if the test point meets the set criteria.

There is an option to view a DP bar or line graph.

#### Table

Displays the DP stimulus frequencies (F1 and F2) tested and the DP stimulus levels (L1 and L2) achieved. The signal and noise sound levels at the specified half octave frequencies and the Signal-to-Noise Ratio (signal minus noise). If the OAE at this frequency has met the set criteria then the SNR value is shown on a green background.

# 6.4 DP Growth (Otoport Advance only)

| [24<br>Checkit: Standow<br>Annual Standow | E later Teach  |   |  |   |     |             |             |         |  |  |  |
|---|--|---|--|---|-----|-------------|-------------|---------|--|--|--|
|   | Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presentor<br>Presentor<br>Nase Note<br>Nase Note<br>Nase Note<br>Nase Note<br>Nase Note<br>Nase Note<br>Nase Note<br>Nase Note<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Presk<br>Pr | CPG Text<br>Right<br>Gooverney<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Standard<br>Stand<br>Stand<br>Stand<br>Stand<br>Stand<br>Stand<br>Stand<br>Stand<br>Stand<br>Stand<br>Stand<br>St | Danton<br>Pa Sin (k)<br>Sin (k)<br>Fannod Gras<br>Mali Hodale ID<br>Sacar ID<br>Harvan<br>Fannar<br>Fannar | 23 eet<br>7 (3 eq<br>13 eq<br>14 eq<br>14 eq<br>14 eq<br>16 e<br>16 e<br>16 e<br>16 e<br>16 e<br>16 e<br>16 e<br>16 e | Tes | ted on 21/0 | 2/2012 at 1 | 5:50:17 |  |  |  |
| Graph Table                               |  |   |  |   |     |             |             |         |  |  |  |
| <b>e e</b>                                |  | ۲   |  | ۲   |     | ۲           |             | ۲       |  |  |  |
|   |  |   |  |   |     |             |             |         |  |  |  |
|   | <u> </u>   |   |  |   |     |             |             |         |  |  |  |
| 40 42 44 46 40 50                         | 12 54  |   |  | - 499PL   |     |             |             |         |  |  |  |

### 6.4.1 Test details

#### Result

The outcome of the test.

#### Ear

The Left or Right ear tested.

#### Protocol

The test mode set on the Otoport when the test was performed.

#### Frequency

The frequency of the F2 stimulus at which the test was conducted.

#### Noise mode

Noise mode reports the method by which the noise floor in DP tests was calculated. Rapid is the mean of the frequency bins close to the DP frequency and is most suitable for screening. Standard is the mean + 2 standard deviations and is more suitable for clinical diagnostics.

#### Noise reject

The noise reject level as it was set at the end of the test.

#### Total OAE

Displays the total OAE summed across all the test points at the different stimulus intensities.

#### **DP threshold**

This is the predicted level of L2 stimulus where no measurable DPOAE will be produced. Only available for DP Growth uPa tests.

#### Slope

This is the rate of growth of DPOAE with increase in L2.

#### DP at 80

This is a predicted level of DPOAE obtained by extrapolating the data to L2=80dBSPL.

#### Fit R<sup>2</sup>

A measure of the quality of the fit of the best fitting line to the data.

#### Duration

The duration of the test in seconds.

#### Fit Size (0-9)

The size of the ear canal, on a scale of 1 (small) to 9 (large), indicated by the stimulus intensity recorded during Checkfit.

#### Stim OK

The percentage of the presented stimuli that were within 1dB of the levels achieved during calibration.

#### **Rejected Data**

The percentage of data rejected NHi - The amount of data rejected due to noise being above the noise reject level. NLo - The amount of data accepted due to noise being below the noise reject level.

#### **ABR Module ID**

The identification number of the ABR module if used during the DPOAE test. A dash is shown if no ABR module was used.

#### Otoport ID

The GSN (unique machine ID) of the machine used for the test.

#### **Tester ID**

The ID of the tester who performed the test. If Otoport login is not turned on, this field will always show ADN. This is the Otoport default Admin account.

#### Probe ID

The serial number of the probe used in the test.

#### File name

The name of the data file created for the test.

#### Firmware

The revision of Otoport firmware used during the test.

### 42 | CHAPTER SIX Data review

# 6.4.2 Checkfit stimulus

The displays are the same as the DPOAE section above.

### 6.4.3 Response

#### Graph

The DPG graph shows the DPOAE levels recorded at each of the six intensity levels presented. The x-axis shows the target L2 levels (45-70dBSPL). The y-axis shows the DPOAE level recorded in uPa or dBSPL depending on the test setting. If the line fit criteria are met then the best fit line is plotted in yellow on the graph.

A test point indicator is shown above the graph if the test point meets the set criteria.

#### Table

Displays the DP stimulus frequencies (F1 and F2) tested and the DP stimulus (L1 and L2) target and achieved levels. The signal and noise sound levels and the Signal-to-Noise Ratio (signal minus noise) at the frequency tested.

If the OAE at this frequency has met the set criteria then the SNR value is shown on a green background.

# 6.5 ABR results



### 6.5.1 Test details

#### Result

The outcome of the test.

#### Ear

The left of right ear tested.

#### Stim Type

The stimulus type used during the test (Click or Short chirp).

#### Stim Level

The stimulus level set for the test in dB HL.

#### **Pass Criteria**

The pass criteria mode used during the test.

#### Protocol

The test mode used during recording.

#### **EEG Reject**

The electrical noise rejection level, above which data is rejected from the measurement averaging process.

#### Mains Settings

The mains electricity frequency setting used during the test, which is important to match to the mains supply frequency in the region the test was conducted.



#### Fsp

A statistical measure that shows the confidence in an ABR response being present, looking at the variance of the waveform compared with the back ground noise.

#### Template correl. (TC)

The level to which the ABR response waveform matches the built in normative template. Values over 1.3 show a good correlation.

#### AB correl.

The correlation between the A and B waveforms recorded in nano volts. The better the correlation, the higher the confidence in there being a real ABR signal.

#### **ABR Noise**

Shows the estimate of residual noise in the averaged response that is used in the Fsp calculation.

#### Duration

The test time in seconds.

#### Fit Size (0-9)

The size of the ear canal, on a scale of 1 (small) to 9 (large), indicated by the stimulus intensity recorded during Checkft.

#### **Achieved Stim**

The stimulus level achieved at the Checkfit stage of the test.

#### Total Noise (TN)

A measure of the electrical noise recorded during the impedance measurement in micro volts.

#### Power Line Noise (PN)

A measure of the noise caused by the mains power supply recorded during the impedance measurement in micro volts.

#### **Rejected Data**

The percentage of rejected data during the test. In brackets is the rejected and accepted data (rejected:accepted).

#### **Otoport ID**

The GSN (unique machine ID) of the machine used for the test.

#### **ABR Module ID**

The identification number of the ABR module if used during the DPOAE test. A dash is shown if no ABR module was used.

#### **Tester ID**

The ID of the tester who performed the test. If Otoport login is not turned on, this feld will always show ADN. This is the Otoport default Admin account.

#### Probe ID

The serial number of the probe used in the test.

#### File name

The name of the data file created for the test.

#### Firmware

The revision of Otoport firmware used during the test.

### 6.5.2 Impedance



Shows the impedance levels recorded on the Otoport ABR for this test. This represents the levels recorded before the test, or the last levels measured if another impedance measurement was made during the test.

The results for the 3 electrodes are shown, along with the Balance between the positive and negative, which is important to be low.

The green circles indicate the quality of the connection of each electrode to the patient during the test. A larger circle indicates a lower impedance and a better connection. A full circle indicates optimum connection.

## 46 | CHAPTER SIX Data review

# 6.5.3 Checkfit stimulus



The target stimulus in dB HL (decibel hearing level) is shown.

A stimulus waveform graph is shown in the time domain and the spectrum of the stimulus is show across frequency by clicking on the Waveform tab.

The stimuli shown is recorded is the click from the pre-test Checkfit phase by clicking on the Spectrum tab. The stimuli used in test is not shown, so if a chirp stimuli is used it will not be displayed on this screen.



# The waveform is shown in the time domain. Two interleaved measurements (waveform A and B) are displayed in orange and yellow. The average of the two measurements (A+B)/2 is displayed in white.

The checkboxes on the right of the graph control which waveforms are shown.



Fsp Progress shows the change in Fsp over the course of the test. The x axis represents the number of sweeps (i.e. data collected) and the y axis represents the Fsp value.

Line 1 represents the dynamic Fsp threshold. This threshold is raised if there is high mains powerline noise during the test to account for any contribution of the powerline noise to Fsp result.

Line 2 represents the Fsp progress during the test.

Pass criteria PC1 & PC2 require the Fsp to exceed the dynamic Fsp threshold) for a Pass result.

Result analysis

6.5.5

Bar graphs show the levels of Fsp and TC at the end of the test in relation to the pass criteria set for the test.

Bar graph 3 represents the Fsp level achieved at the end of the test with the blue horizontal line representing the dynamic Fsp threshold.

If PC3 and PC4 are used a minimum Fsp threshold (amber line) will also be shown representing the lowest Fsp level that could result in a pass.

Bar graph 4 represents the Template Correlation (TC) achieved at the end of the test, with the amber horizontal line representing the minimum TC requirement necessary for a pass.

If PC3 and PC4 are used the strict TC threshold (blue line) will also be shown representing the higher threshold for TC required in high powerline noise environments.

PC1 requires that:

Fsp exceed the dynamic Fsp threshold (blue line Fsp bar).

PC2 requires that:

Fsp exceed the dynamic Fsp and TC exceeds the minimum TC requirement (amber line TC bar).

PC3 requires that:

Fsp exceed the dynamic Fsp and TC exceeds the minimum TC threshold.

OR

Fsp exceed the minimum Fsp threshold (amber line Fsp bar) and TC exceeds the strict TC threshold (blue line TC bar)

PC4 requires that:

Fsp exceed the dynamic Fsp threshold

OR

Fsp exceed the minimum Fsp) and TC exceeds the strict TC threshold)

See your Otoport manual for a full explanation of the pass criteria.

# 7 Printing



Printing of tests selected in **Data Viewer** can be initiated from the options in the **File** menu or from the **Print** button.

Note:

Test results can also be automatically printed when they are downloaded from the Otoport. See chapter 15 **Custom settings** for details.

#### 7.1

# Print button



When the **Print** button is selected, test results will be printed directly, using the default print options, with no further dialogue. The default options are described in section 7.3 **Customisation**.

The small arrow at the right-hand end of the **Print** button gives access to a drop-down list. Use the list to change the type of print created by the button. Choose from **Print** (single test), **Print Pair**, **Print 2 Selected** and

Print Patient. Each of these options is described in detail below.

The **Print** button will print all the tests selected with the tick/check boxes or just the test currently highlighted (if no tests have been selected). The exception is the **Print 2 Selected** option, which is restricted to the two tests selected.

#### 7.1.1 Print (single test)

When the **Print** option is selected a page will be printed for each test result selected.



Otodynamics Ltd, Printed 03 March 2014 14:36:11, Page 1 of 1.

### 7.1.2 Print Pair

The **Print Pair** function finds an opposite ear test which best matches the test selected and prints both test results together. The criteria for selecting the second test are: the test was for the same patient, the same test type and the opposite ear and was performed within 24 hours.

For TE and DP tests, if more than one test meets this criteria then preference is given to pass results, results with more band passes, or the result with the larger total OAE.

DP tests also consider the target stimulus level.

DP Growth tests are only paired if the tests have the same starting stimulus level and test frequency.

If no matching test is found, the user will be warned and given the option to print the single test in the two ear format.

The test data printed in two ear format is identical to that in single ear format.



# 7.1.3 Print 2 Selected

The **Print 2 Selected** function will print two tests manually selected on the same page. Choose the two tests using the tick/check boxes.

The tests must be for the same patient and test type.

Sample print (Print 2 Selected):

|   |   |                         |               |                   | OAE                  | ЕТе                      | st Result  |   |              | (             | Otoc              | lyna                 | mi          |
|---|---|-------------------------|---------------|-------------------|----------------------|--------------------------|--|---|--------------|---------------|-------------------|----------------------|-------------|
|   |   |                         |               |                   |                      | Patier                   | t Details  |   |              |               |                   |                      |             |
| Name: Brown, Jame<br>Gender: NotGiven<br>Facility: Hospital<br>Notes: | S   |                         |               |                   |                      |                          | Patient ID: 84701<br>Date Of Birth: 07/02<br>Location: Inpatient<br>Consent: Unknown | <b>DPZ1</b><br>2/2014                         |              | NIC           | :U: No<br>ks: Uk  | 'n                   |             |
| Left  |   |                         |               |                   |                      |                          | Right  |   |              |               |                   |                      |             |
| DP SNR OK   | 30 -<br>20 -<br>20 -<br>20 -<br>20 -<br>20 -<br>20 -<br>20 -<br>2 | 000<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>1 |               | 2.83<br>kHz       | <b>900</b><br>4 5.66 | <b>20</b><br>0<br>0<br>8 | DP SNR OK  | 30 -<br>20 -<br>10 -<br>10 -<br>10 -<br>-10 - | <b>*</b>     | 2-0-          | 2.83<br>kHz       | <b>900</b><br>4 5.66 | <b>00</b>   |
| Tested of   | on 07/02  | /2014 ;                 | at 11:33      | 3:37              |                      |                          | Tested   | on 06/02                                      | /2014 a      | at 14:13      | :08               |                      |             |
| ettings   |   |                         | Data          | Table             |                      |                          | Settings   |   |              | Data          | Table             |                      |             |
| 3st Type: DP<br>arget Stim.: 70/70 dBSPL<br>rotocol: TEST 1           | F2<br>(Hz)  | L1<br>(dBSPL)           | L2<br>(dBSPL) | Signal<br>(dBSPL) | Noise<br>(dBSPL)     | SNR<br>(dB)              | Test Type: DP<br>Target Stim.: 70/70 dBSPL<br>Protocol: TEST 1                       | F2<br>(Hz)                                    | L1<br>(dBSPL | L2<br>(dBSPL) | Signal<br>(dBSPL) | Noise<br>(dBSPL)     | SNR<br>(dB) |
| tart Freq.: 1000 Hz   | 1000  | 70.6                    | 69.7          | 7.3               | -6.2                 | 13.5                     | Start Freq.: 1000 Hz   | 1000  | 70.4         | 69.4          | 4.8               | -4.6                 | 9.4         |
| nd Freq.: 8000 Hz<br>resolution: 1/4 Octave                           | 1189  | 70.7                    | 69.5          | 10.2              | -5.8                 | 16.0                     | End Freq.: 8000 Hz<br>Resolution: 1/4 Octave   | 1189  | 70.4         | 69.1          | 8.6               | -7.9                 | 16.5        |
| oise Mode: Standard   | 1414  | 70.4                    | 69.6          | 2.1               | -6.4                 | 8.5                      | Noise Mode: Standard   | 1414  | 70.3         | 70.0          | -0.4              | -8.1                 | 7.7         |
| oise Reject: 52 dBSPL   | 1682  | 70.2                    | 70.0          | 11.0              | -9.2                 | 20.2                     | Noise Reject: 52 dBSPL   | 1682  | 69.8         | 69.8          | 9.9               | -11.3                | 21.2        |
| nalysis   | 2000  | 69.9                    | 69.6          | 9.2               | -5.3                 | 14.5                     | Analysis   | 2000  | 69.7         | 69.2          | 8.5               | -10.2                | 18.7        |
| POAE: 26 dBSPL  | 2378  | 69.8                    | 70.3          | 5.9               | -8.7                 | 14.6                     | DPOAE: 26.1 dBSPL  | 2378  | 69.5         | 70.1          | 7.0               | -7.9                 | 14.9        |
| uration: 200 sec  | 2828  | 70.1                    | 69.8          | 13.9              | -6.9                 | 20.8                     | Duration: 323 Sec  | 2828  | 70.0         | 69.6          | 14.0              | -11.8                | 25.8        |
| Fire (0.0): R (Medium)  | 3364  | 70.1                    | 69.6          | 6.0               | -6.6                 | 12.6                     | Eit Size (0.0): 6 (Medium)   | 3364  | 69.7         | 68.6          | 2.9               | -8.0                 | 10.9        |
| tim OK: 100 %   | 4000  | 70.4                    | 70.0          | 19.1              | -9.8                 | 28.9                     | Stim OK: 100 %   | 4000  | 70.0         | 70.1          | 18.9              | -11.9                | 30.8        |
| ejected Data: 2.7 % (60:2186)   | 4757  | 70.5                    | 69.8          | 19.0              | -9.3                 | 28.3                     | Rejected Data: 0.1 % (2:2490)  | 4757  | 69.9         | 69.3          | 19.0              | -11.6                | 30.6        |
| aceability  | 5657  | 67.3                    | 68.5          | 21.9              | -9.6                 | 31.5                     | Traceability   | 5657  | 66.4         | 67.2          | 22.5              | -11.4                | 33.9        |
| toport ID: Y9V  | 6727  | 70.0                    | 69.9          | 7.8               | -9.0                 | 16.8                     | Otoport ID: Y6X  | 6727  | 70.0         | 69.8          | 9.9               | -9.6                 | 19.5        |
| D D 11 1 1 1 10   | 8000  | 69.7                    | 70.0          | 5.0               | -17.8                | 22.8                     | ABR Module ID: -<br>Tester ID: ADN<br>Probe ID: UGD-C009020                          | 8000  | 69.0         | 69.8          | 4.5               | -14.8                | 19.3        |

## 7.1.4 Print Patient

This prints a summary of all the tests for the selected patient, separated into left and right ears. The oldest test is shown at the top and up to four left and four right tests are shown per page. Multiple pages are printed if required.

**Patient Summary** (Otodynamics **Patient Details** Name: Jones Patient ID: JGMN4H00 Gender: Male Date Of Birth: 23/01/2012 Facility: Hospital Location: Inpatient NICU: No Consent: Unknown Notes: Risks: Llkn Right Left Too Few Bands **DPOAE** Pass Test Type: DP Protocol: ANY3BANDS Test Type: DP Protocol: ANY5BANDS Duration: 9 sec Duration: 13 sec DPOAE: 94 dBSPI DPOAE: 19.8 dBSPL Ø 0000 0 Ø Target Stim.: 70/70 dBSPL Target Stim.: 70/70 dBSPL Start Freq .: 1500 Hz Start Freq .: 1000 Hz 0 End Freq : 8000 Hz End Freq : 8000 Hz 10 10 Resolution: 1/2 Octav Resolution: 1/4 Octa Filename: MJTM1N38 Filename: MJTM1N36 Date of Test: 23/01/2012 Date of Test: 23/01/2012 1.41 5.66 Time of Test: 10:45:01 Time of Test: 10:43:32 **DPOAE** Pass **DPOAE** Pass Test Type: DP Protocol: ANY3BANDS Test Type: DP Protocol: ANY3BANDS Duration: 6 sec Duration: 6 sec DPOAE: 16.7 dBSPL DPOAE: 17.1 dBSPL Ø 00 Ø 0 0 Target Stim.: 70/70 dBSPL Target Stim.: 70/70 dBSPL Start Freq .: 1500 Hz Start Freq.: 1000 Hz 21 20 -End Freq .: 8000 Hz End Freq .: 6000 Hz 10 Resolution: 1/2 Octave Resolution: 1/2 Octave Filename: MJTM1N39 Filename: MJTM1N48 Date of Test: 23/01/2012 Time of Test: 10:45:24 Date of Test: 23/01/2012 Time of Test: 10:49:08 -1 **DPOAE** Pass **TEOAE** Pass Test Type: DP Duration: 6 sec Protocol: ANY3BANDS Test Type: TEQ Duration: 8 sec Protocol: ANY2BANDS DPOAE: 16.7 dBSPL TEOAE: 7.6 dBSPL 0 Ø 0 Target Stim.: 70/70 dBSPL Noise: 0.4 dBSPL Start Freq .: 1500 Hz Target Stim.: 84 dBpe End Freq .: 8000 Hz Filename: JGMN4H02 10 Resolution: 1/2 Octave Filename: MJTM1N49 Date of Test: 17/04/2013 Time of Test: 10:20:55 Date of Test: 23/01/2012 1.5 2 Time of Test: 10:50:30 Poor Probe Fit Test Type: DP Protocol: ANY3BANDS Duration: 10 sec DPOAE: 5.8 dBSPL Target Stim.: 65/55 dBSPL Start Freq .: 1500 Hz 20 End Freq .: 8000 Hz 10 Resolution: 1/2 Octave Filename: JGMN4H00 Date of Test: 17/04/2013 Time of Test: 10:19:26 Otodynamics Ltd, Printed 11 October 2013 15:58:23, Page 1 of 1.

Sample print (Print Patient):

# 7.2 Print format

The format of the test printout depends upon the Otoport model used in the test; Otocheck and Otoport Lite printouts do not include data tables or response bar graphs.

TE and DP tests have some different fields in the **Test Details** and **Technical Details** sections.

# 7.3 Customisation

This area allows the user to change the appearance of the printout and the dataviewer.

×

# 7.3.1 Printing tab

#### Customisation

| Printing Configuration   |
|--|
| Please enter a Facility Name and Address to appear at the top of<br>your printouts. For example 'Hospital A. London' |
| Facility Name  |
| Address  |
| Please select custom logo image for printouts.   |
| 6  |
| 🗹 Show Logo Image  |
| Please select Standard or Reverse format for the 2 Ear printout.   |
| Standard (Left Ear Test on left side of page)  |
| © Reverse ( Left Ear Test on right side of page)   |
| Combine Patient Tests.   |
| Ó Na tá Var  |
| U NO TES   |
| Please select output type for multiple test and shortcut printing.   |
| a Conserved Bulleville Bulleville  |
| Current Default Printer     DDE Elle Overet     U/OneDrive Otedwarmics HtllTection Aldel Overet Warkelseel Brintel   |
| Auto open PDF(s)   |
| Please select default printing shortcut option.  |
| Print  |
|  |
| Cancel Save  |
|  |

Customising **Printing** allows the user to add the name and address of their organisation to the top of the Otolink printout, add a custom logo, change the layout of the two ear print (standard or reversed format), or setup printing to PDF file.

To load a custom logo, select **Show Logo Image** and use the browse button to select the image to add, which needs to be in bitmap (.bmp) format.

If files are printed to PDF, each print will be saved with a unique filename with the format:

For single ear prints: PatientName\_PatientID\_TestDataFilename\_1Ear\_Date\_Time

For two ear prints: PatientName\_PatientID\_TestDataFilename\_2Ear\_Date\_Time

Select the **Auto open PDF(s)** box to open and display PDF files when they are created.

Use the drop-down list to select the default option for the **Print** button.

By default tests assigned to one patient will be printed individually, however the user can turn on the '**combine patient tests**' option. If this is switched to **Yes** all tests performed under the same patient name will be printed in a combined format when '**Print**' or '**Print pair**' is selected.

# 7.3.2 Configuration tab

| Customi  | sation            |                          |                    |                         | ^ |
|----------|-------------------|--------------------------|--------------------|-------------------------|---|
| Printing | Configuration     |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          | Please tick which | n of the below fields sh | ould be visible wh | en reviewing test data. |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          | 💌 Mother          | 🗹 NICU                   |                    | Pass Icons              |   |
|          | 🗹 Mother's DOB    | 🗹 Consent                |                    | 🗹 Result Icon           |   |
|          | Physician         | 🗹 Risks                  |                    | 🗹 Result Text           |   |
|          | Location          | 🗹 Weight                 |                    |                         |   |
|          | 🗹 Facility        | 🗹 Nursery L              | evel               |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   | Test data qu             | ality alerts.      |                         |   |
|          |                   | a off                    | @ <b>O</b> n       |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          | 0 011              |                         |   |
|          |                   | ABR Waveform             | Display Polarity   |                         |   |
|          |                   | ABIC Waveloitti          | Display Foldinty.  |                         |   |
|          | © Vertex + (st    | andard)                  | Vertex             | - (inverted)            |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          |                   |                          |                    |                         |   |
|          | $\mathbf{x}$      | Cancel                   |                    | Save                    |   |
|          |                   |                          | 01.0               |                         |   |

It is possible to configure which screening fields are displayed in **Dataviewer**, **Data review** and the printouts. These include patient details and test result information. If using your Otoport in a clinical environment, you may wish to turn off these fields.

Users also benefit from the ability to switch the display polarity in which the ABR waveform is presented. By default the waveform is displayed as '**Vertex+**'. however this can be set to the inverse by selecting '**Vertex-**'.

### 7.3.3 Test data quality alerts

By default, data is highlighted in yellow (or in bold on the printouts) to draw attention to test quality issues. Fields are highlighted when they

are outside the range expected in good test conditions. Stimulus level achieved, stimulus stability/percentage OK, waveform reproducibility, noise reject percentage and duration are included.

ABR specific test quality alerts include the Fsp and ABR noise levels.

It is possible to enable or disable the **Test data quality alerts** in the **Configuration** area.

# 7.4 Print from File menu

| Otolink Print   | Options                    | ×                             |
|---|----------------------------|-------------------------------|
| Selected Printer  |                            | -                             |
| Report Destinat<br>Printer<br>Pre <u>vi</u> ew<br><u>Eile</u><br>Format: Rave S | ion<br>Snapshot File (NE 🔽 | OK<br>Cancel<br><u>S</u> etup |
| <u>C</u> opies  | Collate                    | •                             |

Selecting **Print** in the File menu provides a Print Options screen before printing, with facilities for printer selection via the **Setup** button, print preview, printing to file and printing multiple copies.

Note:

If more than one test is selected using the test check boxes, printing begins immediately without the print options being available.

# 8 Data management

The data management area provides facilities for selected data to be exported, edited, deleted, transferred, archived or imported and allows the entire database to be backed up or restored.



Otoport data is stored by Otolink in two forms - a single database file containing all the data on all of the tests and an individual file containing detailed results from each test. The individual files have the suffix OtoTE for TEOAE, OtoDP for DPOAE, OtoDPZ for DP Zoom and OtoDPG for DP Growth tests. DTA (TEOAE) and DPG (DPOAE) files are also created for compatibility with Otodynamics ILO V6 software.

Data in both forms is stored when data is archived or backed up.

Export 8.1

| Export   | × |
|--|---|
| Please select an export file type and filepath before exporting the currently filtered tests.  |   |
| Number of Tests to be exported: 129 out of 129   |   |
| Paulocxport<br>Select 'Yes' to auto-export test downloads to selected file location.   Yes • No  |   |
| Sub Folders-<br>Select Yes' to generate subfolders for individual Otoport export files (these will be<br>Pes ● Yes ● No<br>labelled with the Otoport's GSN number).  |   |
| Export Type NCHAM, HI'TRACK  | 9 |
| Export Filepath C:\Users\curtm\Desktop   |   |
| Export Filename  |   |
| (Please Note - The relevant file extension will be added to your filename when the file is exported.<br>If the export filename entry is left blank on press of the export tests' button then the following default<br>filenames will be used; Oz Data Systems = OzData.Bin: NCHAM-HI*TRACK = Otolink.txt;<br>CSV = ILOData.CSV; Configurable Ascii = ConfigurableAscii.txU/ConfigurableAscii.csv.) |   |
| Close Export Tests   |   |

Export allows the user to export all the tests in the filtered record list, or any selected test(s). The number of tests to be exported is displayed at the top of the screen. The Export Types supported are OZ Data Systems, NCHAM Hi•Track (standard & ICMS), Configurable Ascii, NBHSW & SBR.

Default filenames are provided but can be changed by adding a new name to the Export Filename field.

The directory where the export file will be saved can be changed by clicking on the folder icon on the right of the Export Filepath window.



### 8.1.1 Export options

AutoExport enables new data downloaded from the Otoport to be automatically added to the chosen export file. Additional downloads append tests to the file if the file is present. Tip - To avoid duplication in the export file created, set Only Download New Test Data? to YES on the Otoport Download screen. A new file is generated on download if no file exists. (Not available for Excel export).

You may also choose to have separate result folders created for future downloads from different Otoports. The **Sub Folders** will be identified by the GSN (machine ID) of the Otoport. Note that **Sub Folders** will only be created for new downloads. Data already downloaded to the **Data Viewer** will not be separated into subfolders.

When you configure the Export area and Close, all settings are saved.

Note:

If **AutoExport** is selected, test results are exported when data is downloaded from the Otoport. Only data entered on the Otoport will be exported and any additional fields added or edited in Otolink will not be included. Tests that have been auto-exported can be re-exported after they have been edited, but doing so will result in multiple copies of the same test result in the export file, unless a new export file is started. It is recommended that **AutoExport** is turned off if you plan to edit patient details within Otolink. Tests can then be exported manually after edits have been made.

## 8.1.2 NCHAM, Hi\*Track

If the **Export Type** is set to **NCHAM Hi\*Track**, the test results are exported to the file Otolink.txt ready for import to Hi\*Track.

A number of features have been incorporated in order to make import to Hi\*Track as simple as possible.

**Required Fields** 

Hi\*Track requires that Date of Birth is provided. Any record which does not have a date of birth will not be exported and the user will be advised to add a date of birth.

Not all of the patient data accepted by Hi\*Track can be entered on your Otoport. The additional information can be added by using the **Edit Details** function in Otolink (see section 8.8 and **Hi\*Track pick lists** below).

Hi\*Track pick lists

Hi\*Track pick lists are generated by Hi\*Track software. They can be used by Otolink to improve the transfer of data between the programs.

If **NCHAM Hi\*Track** export is selected, Otolink looks for pick list files in the directory Otolink\Hi Track in order to provide drop-down lists to help fill out the fields in the **Edit Details** area. If the files are not found, the pick list information is not available.

If you have any of the Hi\*Track pick list files below:

| Educat.txt   |
|--------------|
| Ethni_CA.txt |
| Ethni_CA.txt |
| Hospital.txt |
| Nur_Type.txt |
| OtoIDs.txt   |
| Pednames.txt |
| Race_CA.txt  |
| Race_HI.txt  |
| Screener.txt |

Then copy or move them to the directory:

C:\Program Files\Otodynamics\Otolink\Hi Track

This makes the lists available within Otolink's Edit Details function.

| Patient/Test Details Edit | t                     |   |  | ×     |
|---------------------------|-----------------------|---|--|-------|
| Patient Details           | Test Details          |   |  |       |
|                           |                       | <ul> <li>Change all tes</li> <li>Change for th</li> </ul> | sts for this patient.<br>is test only. |       |
| Patient Moth              | her   Location & Fac  | ity   |  |       |
|                           |                       |   |  |       |
|                           | ID 3-EAR              |   | Weight                                 | grams |
|                           | Name <mark>1-8</mark> |   | Risks 🔘                                | Ukn   |
| First                     | Name                  |   | Gestational Age                        | weeks |
| Date (                    | Df Birth 01/04/2021   | •   | Birth Order                            | •     |
| G                         | iender Male           | •   | Consent Full                           | •     |
|                           | Race                  |   | •                                      |       |
|                           | Notes                 |   |  |       |
|                           |                       |   |  |       |
| Phy                       | /sician               |   |  | •     |
|                           |                       |   |  |       |
|                           |                       |   |  |       |
|                           | [] law                |   | Consul                                 |       |
|                           | Save                  |   | Cancel                                 |       |

If Educat.txt file is available, Education Level can be chosen from a dropdown list of the education levels listed in the file. If there is no fi le, the fi elds are free entry up to 50 characters.

If Ethni\_CA.txt or Ethni\_HI.txt file is available, Ethnicity can be chosen from a dropdown list of the Ethnicities listed in the file. If there is no file, the fields are free entry up to 50 characters.

If Racei\_CA.txt or Race\_HI.txt file is available, Race can be chosen from a dropdown list of the Races listed in the file. If there is no file, the file are free entry up to 50 characters.

If Hospital.txt is available, then the Screening Facility and Birth Facility show the contents of the file for selection. If there is no file, the fields are free entry up to 50 characters.

If Nur\_Type.txt is available, then the Nursery Level can be chosen from a drop-down list of the options listed in that file. If the file is not present, then nursery is chosen from a default drop-down list.

If Pednames.txt file is available, Physician can be chosen from a dropdown list of the Physicians listed in the file. If there is no file, the fileds are free entry up to 50 characters.

If OtoIDs.txt is available, then the Otoport ID assigned to the users set up on the Otoport will be exported.

Note:

If NICU is set to **Yes**, this will override any selection made in the Nursery level field and the Hi Track export file will show a Nursery level of 2.

Format and defaults

By using the **Format and Defaults tab** in the **Hi\*TRACK** configuration area users can apply registered locations, screening facilities, birth facilities and nursery level to all tests automatically upon download.

This means users will not have to manually fill in these areas after export.

| HI*TRACK Configurati | on                                   |                              |  |
|----------------------|--------------------------------------|------------------------------|--|
| Format & Defau       | Its Users                            |                              |  |
|                      | © ICMS                               | <ul> <li>Standard</li> </ul> |  |
|                      | Location () C                        | ff ⊚ On                      |  |
|                      | Inpatient<br>Screening Facility () C |                              |  |
|                      | Birth Facility 💿 C                   | <br>Iff © On                 |  |
|                      | Nursery Level 💿 C                    | vff ⊘ On                     |  |
|                      |                                      | •                            |  |
|                      | 1-1                                  |                              |  |

#### Setting up users

The Otoport and Hi\*Track use different methods for identifying users. In order to correctly assign Otoport test results to Hi\*Track users it is necessary to match each Hi\*Track user with the appropriate Otoport user.

On your Otoport note the **Name** and **User ID** for each user. If you have not yet set up users on your Otoport then refer to the Otoport manual for instructions.

On your PC, open the **Otolink Data Viewer**. Select **Data Management**, then **Export**.

| Export   | ×  |
|--|----|
| Please select an export file type and filepath before exporting the currently filtered tests.  |    |
| Number of Tests to be exported: 129 out of 129   |    |
| CAUtoExport<br>Select "Yes' to auto-export test downloads to selected file location. ● Yes ♥ No  |    |
| Sub Folders-<br>Select Yes' to generate subfolders for individual Otoport export files (these will be<br>labelled with the Otoport's GSN number).  |    |
| Export Type NCHAM, HI"TRACK   Ascii Config HI"TRACK Conf   | ig |
| Export Filepath C:\Users\curtm\Desktop   | 7  |
| Export Filename  |    |
| (Please Note - The relevant file extension will be added to your filename when the file is exported.<br>If the export filename entry is left blank on press of the export tests' button then the following default<br>filenames will be used, Oz Data Systems = OzData.Bin; NCHAM-HI*TRACK = Otolink.bd;<br>CSV = ILOData.CSV; Configurable Ascii = ConfigurableAscii.txt/ConfigurableAscii.csv.)<br>CSV = ILOData.CSV; Configurable Ascii = ConfigurableAscii.txt/ConfigurableAscii.csv.) |    |

Select NCHAM, Hi\*TRACK as the Export Type, if it is not already selected.

Then select the Hi\*TRACK Users button.

If Otolink cannot find a screener.txt file in C:\Program Files\Otodynamics\ Otolink\Hi Track, the **Hi\*TRACK Users** button will be greyed-out and will not function. Check that you have copied your screener.txt file to the correct location.

The **Hi\*TRACK Users** window will show the Hi\*TRACK User ID and User Name for all of the users listed in the screener.txt file.

|                  | auton              |                   |                    |
|------------------|--------------------|-------------------|--------------------|
| Format & Defa    | ults Users         |                   |                    |
| HI*TRACK User II | HI*TRACK User Name | Otoport Tester ID | Otoport Tester Nar |
| 999              | , UNKNOWN          |                   |                    |
| 001              | EDWARDS, JEANNETTE | ADN               | Admin              |
| 003              | GATES, CYNTHIA     |                   |                    |
| 002              | ISUPONUS, DAWN     |                   |                    |
| GAB              | Thimble, Gabby     |                   |                    |
|                  |                    |                   |                    |
|                  |                    |                   |                    |

For each **Hi\*TRACK User** enter the matching **Otoport Tester ID** and **Otoport Tester Name** in the adjacent field. When all of the users have been correctly matched select **Save**.

**Otoport Tester** records will be exported to the Hi\*Track file with the matching **Hi\*TRACK User ID** instead of the **Otoport Tester ID**.

Alternatively, set up your users on the Otoport using the same 3 character ID that is used in Hi\*Track.

### 8.1.3 Ascii export

The fields exported in an Ascii export may be selected by using the **Ascii Config** button.



Select the fields required in the **Export** and choose the **File Extension** type. Note that not all of the fields are available for all Otoport models. When you are satisfied with your selection, select **Save**. Select **Cancel** to discard your selection.

| Patient Details Test | Details TE Details | DP Details DPG Details ABR Details |
|----------------------|--------------------|------------------------------------|
| D ID                 |                    | Facility                           |
| ✓ Name (family)      |                    |                                    |
| 🔽 Forename           |                    | Consent                            |
| Date Of Birth        |                    | ☐ Risks                            |
| Gender               |                    | ☐ Weight                           |
| Mother's name        |                    | 🔲 Nursery Level                    |
| Mother's DOB         |                    | Physician                          |
| Location             |                    | ☐ Notes                            |
|                      |                    |                                    |
|                      |                    |                                    |

Separate Ascii export files are created for different test types.

Note:

The Ascii Config button will not be available unless Configurable Ascii is selected as the Export Type.

# 8.2 Export to PDF

It is possible to setup Otolink so that tests results are automatically exported on download as pdf files. To do so set **Auto Print** in the **Custom** 

Settings area (see chapter 15 Custom settings) and set PDF file output in the Data viewer print customisation area (see section 7.2 Customise printout).

# Transfer

Tests stored in Otolink can be transferred to ILO V6 by selecting **Transfer** from the Data Viewer menu. All the filtered records or any selected tests will be transferred.

Tests are automatically transferred by Otolink if V6 is installed when the tests are downloaded from the Otoport. This function enables data to be transferred if V6 has been installed after data has been downloaded.



Select Transfer Data to import the selected data to V6.

Note:

It is not be possible to transfer data to V6 for all Otoport types. A warning message will be displayed if the data for transfer was collected on an Otoport type where V6 is not possible.

# 8.4 Archive



The **Archive** function allows selected tests to be stored in a separate location and purged from the Otolink database if required.

It is necessary to perform separate operations to archive TE and DP data.

Select **Yes** in the **Purging** box to delete the data from the Data Viewer database after it has been archived. Select **No** to retain the data in the Data Viewer.

Select **Archive Data** to begin the archiving process. Select **Close** to return to Data Viewer.

# 8.5 Import



The **Import** function allows archived or backed up data to be incorporated into the Data Viewer database. This enables archived data to be viewed and data downloaded to different PCs to be merged into a single database.

Browse to the Otolink database file location and select **Import Data**. The **Close** button exits this area.

# Delete

86

Select **Delete Test(s)** to delete tests from the Data Viewer database. Test details transferred to ILO V6 or exported to another format will not be deleted.

A highlighted test, or multiple tests selected using the check boxes, can be deleted. The user is required to confirm the deletion before it takes place.

To delete all tests, use **Data Management > Database functions > Empty** (see section 8.6).

Select **Delete Patient(s)** to delete one or more patients from the Data Viewer database. Delete Patient removes all the individual test results for the selected patient from the Data Viewer.

The patient for deletion is chosen by selecting an individual test for that patient. Other test results for that patient are automatically located and deleted. Multiple patient records can be deleted using the check boxes to select a single test for each patient. The user is required to confirm the deletion before it takes place.

# 8.7 Database functions



**Database Functions** provides options to **Backup**, **Restore** and **Empty** the database.

| Patient/Test Details Edit  | × |
|--|---|
| Patient Details Test Details   |   |
| <ul> <li>Change all tests for this patient.</li> <li>Change for this test only.</li> </ul> |   |
| Patient Mother Location & Facility   |   |
|  |   |
| ID 3-EAR Weight grams  |   |
| Name 1-8 Pisks 🔘 Ukn   |   |
| First Name Gestational Age weeks   |   |
| Dete Of Birth 01/04/2021 Sirth Order   | • |
| Gender Male Consent Full   | • |
| Race   |   |
| Notes  | П |
| Physician  | • |
|  |   |
| Save 🔀 Cancel  |   |

## 8.7.1 Backup

The **Backup** function enables the entire database to be backed up to the chosen location. Browse to the folder C:\Program files\Otodynamics\ Otolink and select **OK**.

| elect a di | rectory       |                |     |
|------------|---------------|----------------|-----|
|            | 🗷 🗀 ORL       |                | ^   |
|            | 🗉 🧰 Otodynami | cs             |     |
|            | 🗉 🚞 Bitmap    | sV7.5.14.0     |     |
|            | 🛅 DtaWa       | veformViewer   |     |
|            | 🗉 🚞 ILO4wi    | n              | 100 |
|            | 🗉 🧰 ILO4wi    | n Backup       |     |
|            | 🗉 🚞 Otolink   |                |     |
|            | 🗀 bin         |                |     |
|            | 🕀 🧰 Biti      | napsV7.7.17.2F | ~   |
| 1          |               | 1 11           | >   |

The function creates a file with a date and time stamp in the form:

LogData\_yyyymmdd\_hhmmss.gbk

For example: LogData\_20090302\_123530.gbk is the backup file made on 3rd March 2009 at 12:35:30.

The DTA and DPG files are copied to the appropriate sub folder within the backup location.

### 8.7.2 Restore

The **Restore** function takes the files stored by the database **Backup** and restores them to the Data Viewer database.

| Open   |   |                     |                                     |                   | ?×     |
|--|---|---------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------|--------|
| Look in:   | Dtolink   |                     | •                                   | \$ • • •          | *      |
| My Recent<br>Desktop<br>Desktop<br>My Documents<br>My Computer | <ul> <li>bin</li> <li>BitmapsV7.7.13</li> <li>DatabaseMemo</li> <li>DPGfiles</li> <li>DTAfiles</li> <li>EngineersData</li> <li>Exports</li> <li>HexFiles</li> <li>Hi Track</li> <li>intl</li> <li>Languages</li> <li>Otoport Drivers</li> <li>Otoport flags</li> <li>Portugese</li> <li>Service Pack 1</li> </ul> | 7.2F<br>ryDump<br>s | Curtransfer<br>Curdf<br>CogData_201 | .00408_113907.gbł |        |
| My Network<br>Places   | File name:  | LogData_20100       | 0408_113907.gbk                     |                   | Open   |
|  | Files of type:  | gbk (*.gbk)         |                                     | -                 | Cancel |

Confirmation is necessary before the database **Restore** as this function will over-write the existing database.

## 8.7.3 Empty



**Empty** removes all tests from the Data Viewer database. The user is required to confirm the deletion before it takes place.

8.8

# Edit details

| Patient/Test Details Edit |  | ×  |
|---------------------------|--|----|
| Patient Details           | Test Details   |    |
|                           | <ul> <li>Change all tests for this patient.</li> <li>Change for this test only.</li> </ul> |    |
| Patient Mother            | Location & Facility  |    |
|                           | ID 3-EAR Weight graf   | ns |
| Nar                       | me 1-8 Risks 🔘 Ukn   |    |
| First Nar                 | me Gestational Age wee   | ks |
| Date Of Bi                | Birth 01/04/2021  Birth Order  | •  |
| Geno                      | ider Male Consent Full   | •  |
| Ra                        | ace  |    |
| Not                       | tes .  |    |
| Physici                   | Sien   | -  |
|                           |  |    |
|                           | Save 🛞 Cancel  |    |

The **Edit Details** function allows patient and test details to be amended and further information to be added. **Edit Details** is selected from a rightclick on the test in **Dataviewer** or from the **Data Management** menu.

It is possile to edit one test a at a time (change for this test only), but changes made to the patient details can be copied to the other tests held for that patient (change all tests for this patient).

The **Edit Details** screen is split across 3 pages accessible by tabs at the top of the page - Patient Details, Mother Details and Site & Facility details. Changed fields are highlighted

Note:

If **User Profiles** is turned on, **Edit** is only available to users with Admin rights (see section 13).
### 8.8.1 Patient Details

The **Patient Details** section lists all of the data that is common to all of the tests for this patient.

Select **Change all tests for this patient** to copy the changes or additions made to all of the test records held for this patient (all tests with the same ID and Name). Select **Change for this test only** if you wish to amend details for this record alone. You may need to do this if, for example, a test had been mistakenly saved to the wrong patient record.

There are a number of fields listed in this area which are not available on the Otoport, but can be added here.

Users of Hi\*Track will be able to select entry to some of these fields via drop down lists (see section 8.1).

### 8.8.2 Test Details

The fields **Ear** and **Tester** can be edited. Changes made in this area will apply only to the selected test.

The test date and time and the DTA filename for the selected test are also displayed.

### 8.8.3 Saving edits

When you have completed your editing, select **Save** to confirm your edits, or **Cancel** to discard them.

A message stating how many test records have been changed will be displayed.

If you have changed the ID or Name fields and your new details match other tests in the database, you will be asked if you wish to continue. If you do continue, the patient details for the existing tests in the database will be changed to match the new details you have entered.

After editing, the edited test will be highlighted unless the changes made mean it is not available due to the current filters set.

A record of edits is available from **Edit History** in the **Data Management** area.

# 8.9 Edit History

| 🕯 Edit History              |       |              |          |                             |                     |                  | × |
|-----------------------------|-------|--------------|----------|-----------------------------|---------------------|------------------|---|
| File                        |       |              |          |                             |                     |                  |   |
|                             |       |              | Edit His | story                       |                     |                  |   |
| Name                        | ID    | Filename     | Editor   |                             | Date/Time           | No. Tests Edited | ^ |
| Bertington                  | 31000 | MGAK1J04.DTA | · -      |                             | 31/03/2010 14:59:49 | 1                |   |
| Bertington                  | 31000 |              | -        |                             | 31/03/2010 14:59:49 | 5                |   |
|                             |       |              |          |                             |                     |                  |   |
| Before Edit:                |       |              |          | After Edit:                 |                     |                  |   |
| Ear = Left,<br>Tester = ADN |       |              | 3        | Ear = Left,<br>Tester = ADN |                     |                  |   |
| (2)                         |       |              | ~        | 100                         |                     |                  | ~ |
| <                           | _     | 2            |          | <u>&lt;</u>                 | _                   |                  | 2 |
|                             |       |              |          |                             |                     | Close            |   |

The **Edit History** table shows all the edits made to the database. The columns of the table show:

Name - Patient name prior to the edit.

ID - Patient ID prior to the edit.

**Filename** - Shows the filename of the test edited if changes were made in the **Test Details** section or if **Change for this test only** was selected.

**Editor** - If User Profiles was on when the edit was made, the name of the user who made the edit is stored.

Date/Time - Shows the date and time when the edit was made.

No. Tests Edited - Shows the number of test records changed by this edit.

The table is ordered by Date/Time with newest edit first.

Click on a row in the table to select an edit and show the details of it in the boxes below the table.

Before Edit: Shows the names of all edited fields and the details of those

fields prior to the edit for the currently selected test.

**After Edit**: Shows the names of all fields and the details of those fields after the edit for the currently selected test.

Note:

If **User Profiles** are turned on, **Edit History** is only available to users with Admin rights (see section 2.1).

### 8.9.1 File Menu



The file menu provides three options:

**Save to CSV** - This creates a CSV (comma separated value) file containing the whole edit history.

**Purge** - Asks the user to select a date and then deletes all of edit history prior to that date.

Close - Closes the Edit History window.

# 9 Otolink NOAH 4 module

## Installing the Otolink NOAH module

If NOAH 4 is installed on the PC, Otolink will automatically detect this and, when it starts, the message below will be displayed. Click **OK** to register and install the Otolink NOAH module in the NOAH 4 system.

| onfirm | X  |
|--------|--|
| ?      | Would you like to register Otolink with NOAH 4 software? |
|        | OK Cancel  |

## 9.2 Otoport use with NOAH 4

To use the Otolink NOAH module, your Otoport will need to be enabled for NOAH use. Otoports can be NOAH enabled at the time of purchase or upgraded at a later date.

In order to use the Otolink NOAH module, the Otoport database needs to be empty, so any existing data should first be downloaded and deleted from the Otoport.

## •.3 NOAH configuration



Otolink allows NOAH use with two different protocols.

**Test NOAH patient** requires the Otoport to be connected to the PC twice – once to download the selected patient to the Otoport worklist and once to upload the Otoport tests to that patient.

**Download Tests to NOAH Patient** requires only a single connection to download all of test data on the Otoport to the patient selected in NOAH.

Each protocol is described in detail below.

Select between these options using the radio buttons.

9.4

# Test NOAH patient

| 🗳 Noah 4  |   | 000          | -                 |   |   |   | X |
|---|---|--------------|-------------------|---|---|---|---|
| <u>Eile E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>S</u> etup <u>H</u> e | łр  |              | >                 |   |   |   |   |
| noahaud     Sournal     Sournal                         | <u>noah</u> Ξ: (0   | todynamics   |                   |   |   |   | » |
| Patient Browser <                                       |   | Doe, Jane () | Born () Gender Fe | emale Soc. Sec. No.   |   | 8 |   |
| 8888 🔳  | atest Audiogram   |              | S.                | essions   |   |   |   |
| Search Patients   |   |              | 0                 | 3/Dec/2012 : 🔡  |   |   |   |
| Advanced search   | 2015 200 koo<br>0<br>10<br>10<br>10<br>10<br>10<br>10<br>10<br>10<br>10 | diogram      |                   | Galactory<br>ABC:Otodyn<br>ABC:Otodyn<br>ABC:Otodyn<br>ABC:Otodyn | amics Ltd Otolink<br>amics Ltd Otolink<br>amics Ltd Otolink |   |   |
|   | Patient Comments  |              | C D R             | levices<br>ight ear:<br>N:<br>itting:<br>emote:                   | Left ear:<br>SN:<br>Fitting:                                |   |   |
|   |   |              | G                 | ontact Information  |   | 0 |   |
| User: ABC Serv  | er: USER-PC Patient: Doe  | e, Jane      |                   |   |   |   |   |

The Otoport should be turned off for use with Otolink NOAH and colour Otoports are turned off automatically. Connect the Otoport to the PC.

Open NOAH, select a patient from the NOAH database and click on the **Otodynamics** button (Otolink NOAH module).

The Otolink NOAH module will open and display the patient details. If previous tests have been conducted for the selected patient, the last test completed is also displayed.

| Otoport Data Viewer   |             |               |          |                   |            |                    |             | - 0              | ×        |
|-----------------------|-------------|---------------|----------|-------------------|------------|--------------------|-------------|------------------|----------|
| File Data Management  | NOAH        |               |          |                   |            |                    |             |                  |          |
| Database Search Filte | rs          |               |          |                   |            |                    |             |                  |          |
| Name                  |             |               |          | :                 | ID         |                    |             | Reset Filt       | ters     |
| Test Type Any         | ▼ Tester    | ID Any        | •        | Otoport ID Any    |            | Probe ID Any       | -           | 🗆 New Dat        | a        |
| - Download Date       |             | Test          | Date     |                   |            | Date Of Birth      |             |                  |          |
| Chart 20/12/100       |             | -             | - Cham - | 21/02/2021        |            | Chard 200          | (12/1800    |                  |          |
| Start   30/12/189     | 9           | •             | Start    | 31/03/2021        |            | Start 30/          | 12/1899     |                  |          |
| End 23/11/202         | 1           | -             | End      | 07/12/2021        | -          | End 01/            | 04/2021     |                  | *        |
| Filtered Records      |             |               |          |                   |            |                    |             |                  |          |
| Select All            | e Cl        | ear All       |          | 👌 Print           | •          | Data Review        |             |                  |          |
| Name                  | ID          | Date Of Birth | Ear      | Date/Time of Test | Tester ID  | Download Date/Time | Test Type   | Test Result      | ^        |
| 5.6-8                 | 3-EAR-T     | 01/04/2021    | Left     | 01/04/2021 10:04  | ADN        | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP          | DP SNR OK        |          |
| ▶ 5.6-8, E            | 3-EAR-T     | 01/04/2021    | Right    | 01/04/2021 10:07  | ADN        | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP          | DP SNR OK        |          |
| 5.6-8                 | 3-EAR-T     | 01/04/2021    | Left     | 01/04/2021 10:11  | TST        | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP          | DP SNR OK        |          |
| 5.6-8                 | 3-EAR-T     | 01/04/2021    | Right    | 01/04/2021 10:15  | ADN        | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP          | DP SNR OK        |          |
| 5.6-8                 | 3-EAR-T     | 01/04/2021    | Left     | 01/04/2021 10:18  | ADN        | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP          | DP SNR OK        |          |
| 5.6-8                 | 3-CAVITY-T  | 01/04/2021    | Left     | 01/04/2021 09:42  | ADN        | 01/04/2021 12:11   | DP          | DPZ Test         |          |
| Selected: 0           |             |               |          |                   |            |                    | 129         | out of 129 tests | filtered |
| Summary               |             |               |          |                   |            |                    |             |                  |          |
| Name 5 6-9            | FF          |               |          |                   | $\bigcirc$ | $\dot{\mathbf{O}}$ |             |                  |          |
| ID 3-FA               | 9 CC<br>R-T |               | Protoc   | D HIGH            |            | 30, ~~~~           | O Q         |                  | Ý        |
| Ear Right             |             | Te            | st Tvr   | ne DP             |            | 25                 |             |                  |          |
| Result DP SN          | IR OK       | F             | Filenam  | e SB3V4150        | ش¢۸        | 20                 |             |                  |          |
|                       |             |               |          |                   |            | 10                 | -••-        | ~                |          |
| DPOAE 21 dB           | SPL         | Re            | esolutio | n 1/16 Octave     |            | 5                  |             |                  | <hr/>    |
| Stimulus 70 / 7       | 0 dBSPL     |               | Duratio  | on 195 sec        |            | -5                 |             |                  |          |
| Start Freq. 5657      | Hz          |               |          |                   |            | -10                |             |                  |          |
| End Freg. 8000        | Hz          |               |          |                   |            | 5.66 6.17          | 6.73<br>kHz | 7.34             | 8        |

To load the NOAH patient to your Otoport, select **NOAH** and then **Test NOAH patient** from the drop down list.

Important Note:

If you run the tests under a patient name not loaded from NOAH, it will not be possible to save that data back to the NOAH database, but the tests will be downloaded to the standard Otolink database.

Once you have finished testing the NOAH patient, re-connect the Otoport and the test data will be automatically loaded into the NOAH database.

The data is deleted automatically from the Otoport ready for the next NOAH patient to be loaded.

Tests can be reviewed in the Otolink NOAH module, printed from the file menu or buttons and reviewed in detail in the **Data Review** area. See **Dataviewer** (chapter 5) for more details, which provides the NOAH module



functions.

Note:

The **Data Viewer Data management** functions are not available in the Otolink NOAH module. Patient data management should be conducted in NOAH 4 software.

# Download Tests to NOAH Patient

Select patient from NOAH patient browser then select the **Otodynamics** button.

Otolink will open the Waiting for Download screen shown below.



Connect the Otoport to your PC using the download lead or download data via Bluetooth. The data from the Otoport tests will be automatically downloaded to the patient management software and assigned to the selected patient.

9.5

### Note:

All tests on the Otoport will be downloaded to the selected patient regardless of whether the tests were downloads to separate patients on the Otoport.

For wired download, when download is complete, all tests will be deleted from the Otoport. Tests are not deleted for Bluetooth download, and must be deleted manually before further NOAH tests are run. Not deleting data will result in the old test data being assigned to later patients.

### **Registration**

The Otolink NOAH module can be registered and unregistered from the NOAH menu. Unregistering the module will remove it from NOAH 4 software.

| File N | OAH               |                   |
|--------|-------------------|-------------------|
| Dat    | Test NOAH Patient |                   |
|        | Registration +    | Register Module   |
| _      |                   | Unregister Module |

If Otolink is un-installed from the PC, it will also remove the NOAH module.

### 82 | CHAPTER TEN | GDT

# 10 GDT

## 10.1 Using GDT with Otolink

Otolink can be configured with the patient management system GDT. Using Otolink with GDT requires Otoport and Otolink to be configured for this purpose. Contact Otodynamics or your dealer for further details if you wish to use your equipment with GDT and it is not already configured to do so. The instructions below describe the configuration options for GDT in Otolink. You will also need to configure your patient management software (e.g. Turbomed). Some guidance is included below but the detailed setup will depend on your local systems. Contact Otodynamics or your dealer for further details if you wish to use your equipment with GDT and you are unable to do so with the guidance here.

#### 10.2

### Configuring Otolink for GDT

| Otoport Data Viewer      |               |                  |          |                  |               |
|--------------------------|---------------|------------------|----------|------------------|---------------|
| File Data Management GDT |               |                  |          |                  |               |
| Database Search Filters- |               |                  |          |                  |               |
| Name                     |               | ID               |          |                  | Reset Filters |
| Test Type Any            | Tester ID Any | Otoport ID Any   | -        | Probe ID Any     | 🗏 New Data    |
| Download Date            | т             | est Date         |          | Date Of Birth    |               |
| Start 16.11.2015         | •             | Start 13.10.2015 | -        | Start 14.02.1982 | •             |
| End 16.11.2015           | *             | End 13.10.2015   | <u>.</u> | End 14.02.1982   | *             |

Open the Otolink DataViewer and select **GDT** from the top menu and then select **Configuration**.

| GDT Configuration   | 83 |
|---|----|
| FGDT Configuration  |    |
| Q On 🗰 Off  |    |
|   |    |
| GDT ID Otoport Version 02.10  |    |
| _ Incoming GDT File   |    |
| File Location C:\Program Files\Otodynamics\Otolink\Exports\                         |    |
| Filename ILOOAEI.GDT  |    |
|   |    |
| Coutgoing GDT File  |    |
| File Location C:\Program Files\Otodynamics\Otolink\Exports\                         |    |
| IL OOAFA CINT   |    |
| Filename  |    |
| Attachment options  |    |
| Ø PDF Report 🖤 Data File  |    |
|   |    |
| Delete test data from Otolink database once saved to CDT outgoing file? 🔿 No. 🚔 Yes |    |
| belete test data from otolinik database once saved to don outgoing line: O no Tes   |    |
| View Data After Download? Ö No 🖨 Yes  |    |
|   |    |
|   |    |
| Cancel  |    |
|   |    |

The GDT configuration window will be shown. If it is not already selected then select the  ${\bf On}$  radio button.

Select the required options for your patient management system. Select **Save** to retain your changes, or **Cancel** to discard them.

### 84 | CHAPTER TEN | GDT

# Using your Otoport with GDT

Run tests on a single patient on your Otoport.

Open your patient management software and select the patient who has been tested. Now select **Otoport** in your patient management software. Otolink will open the **Waiting for Download** screen shown below.



Connect the Otoport to your PC using the download lead or download data via Bluetooth. The data from the Otoport tests will be automatically downloaded to the patient management software and assigned to the selected patient.

Note:

All tests on the Otoport will be downloaded to the selected patient regardless of whether the tests were downloads to separate patients on the Otoport.

For wired download, when download is complete, all tests will be deleted from the Otoport. Tests are not deleted for Bluetooth download, and must be deleted manually before further GDT tests are run. Not deleting data will result in the old test data being assigned to later patients.

# 4 Configuring GDT software (Turbomed)

The GDT software must be configured to call our Otolink with the parameter **/GDT**. Other suggested setup parameters in the Turbomed GDT setup are shown in the following screenshots:

| Name      | Dtoport  | Otoport -                                    |
|-----------|--|--|
|           | X GDT Anbindung 2.1 nutzen                                   |  |
| Programm  | C:\Program Files\Otodynamics\Otolink\OtoPortPCLink.exe       |  |
| Parameter | (GDT   |  |
|           | X Programm aufrufen beim Export                              |  |
|           | Export   | Import                                       |
| Pfad      | C:\Program Files\Otodynamics\Otolink\Exports                 | C:\Program Files\Otodynamics\Otolink\Exports |
| Dateiname | LOOAEi.GDT   | LOOAE0.GDT                                   |
|           | X Beim Export aus dem Menü Formular anzeigen                 | Import nur manuell                           |
|           | X Automatischer Export beim Formularaufruf aus dem Menü      | Beim Import Formular anzeigen                |
|           | X Beim Export aus der Karteikarte Formular anzeigen          |  |
|           | V. Automaticales Forest bein Foresting for an der Mateilante |  |

| GDT Einstellu   | ngen  | C)   |
|---|---|--|
| Übersicht   | Export Import   | GDT 2.1  |
| GDT-ID Empfanger<br>GDT-Version<br>Zeichenastz<br>Satzart<br>8402<br>8410<br>Patientenkennung<br>Arztikennungen Ansicht | Citopart.<br>02.10 v<br>IBM(Standard) CP 437 v<br>6302 v<br>Pat. Nr. v<br>1 : Dr.med. Gottlieb Mustermann v Sø<br>Bei Rücksprung nur Pat.Nr. sendon | GrosseiGewicht<br>Dezimalzeichen P <b>unkt -</b> |
|   |   | Übernehmen <u>Q</u> K <u>A</u> bbrechen          |

10.4



| GDT Einstellungen   | Import GDT 2.1  |
|---|---|
| Hyperlink Date: incht kopieren Datei auf Server kopieren X Datei auf Server kopieren und löschen Kanteleintrag X Kanteleintrag nach Typ | Speicherpfad<br>X Turbolled/Dokumente<br>Anderer<br>X Jahrklonat<br>Dateiimportpfad |
|   | Übernehmen) QK Abbrechen  |

# 11 About & Language



The **About & Language** screen lists details of Otolink and Otoport versions and settings. If no Otoport is connected then only Otolink details will be displayed.





### Bluetooth device status

Click on **Bluetooth device status** to review the connection status of detected Bluetooth Otoport devices used for wireless data download. (See section 15.3 for details)

## 11.2 Automatic updates

| hoose updates to download and in | stall. |
|----------------------------------|--------|
| Jpdate Title:                    |        |
| 1.221.020.1 Upgrade              |        |
|                                  |        |
| Netaile:                         |        |
|                                  |        |
|                                  |        |
|                                  |        |
|                                  |        |

Otolink can automatically check for new updates from the Otodynamics website, which can then be downloaded and installed. By default a weekly automatic check is made, which can be turned on or off by using the tick/ check box. Or use the **Check for available updates** button to see if a new version is currently available.

If a new version is found, the update process will initiate. Select **Download and Install** and then follow the on-screen instructions to complete the update.

New Otoport firmware can also be delivered in this way, which will be loaded into the Otolink directory ready for upgrade. See 12.1.1 **Updates** 

#### Available.

Note:

The **Firmware update** icon in the Otolink suite will also show if there is an update available.

### 11.3 Language

Select the language you require from those available on the drop-down list. Otolink will then be converted to the language chosen.

Note:

Due to the length of some translated phrases, a minimum screen resolution of  $1280 \times 960$  is recommended.



# 12 Firmware updates



This area enables the Otoport to be updated with files supplied by Otodynamics and provides service functions for the Otoport database.

#### Note:

This area is available only to users with Otolink Admin rights.

### 12.1 Updates

#### Important Notes:

- 1 Only select Update Firmware or Updates Available! if it is necessary to re-install or upgrade the Otoport firmware. Your dealer or Otodynamics will provide you with the necessary files in order to do this.
- 2 DO NOT disconnect the Otoport during this process. A confirmation message appears at the end, stating the process has completed.
- 3 When performing firmware updates, connect the Otoport to the PC directly, using the PC cable provided. DO NOT connect the Otoport via a hub, as this can cause intermittency in the firmware update process.
- 4 If you print directly from the Otoport using Bluetooth (wirelessly), please ensure that the mini printer is turned off before starting

the firmware update. You may have problems connecting to the printer after updating if it is turned on during the update process.

The button in the **Updates** area shows **Updates Available!** if Otolink detects a new firmware file relevant to your device. **Update Firmware** is shown otherwise.

Prior to firmware update, test data should be downloaded to Otolink and deleted from the Otoport database and the unit should be turned off.

### 12.1.1 Updates Available

If **Updates Available** is shown, then select this to begin the update.

| Firmware Updates              |                          |                | x              |
|-------------------------------|--------------------------|----------------|----------------|
| Updates                       |                          |                |                |
| Select the                    | 'Update Available        |                |                |
| Existing Pro                  | nduct Version 3 25 1     | 17             |                |
| C:\Program Files (x86)\Oto    | odvnamics\Otolink\HexFil | les\P6 Lite TE |                |
| +ABR_V3.25.1.18_ENG.da        | at                       |                | - A            |
|                               | ~                        |                |                |
|                               | Update Available!        |                |                |
| Services                      |                          |                |                |
| Format Otoport Database Files | Image Otoport            | Log Files      | Update Config. |
| Dealer Config                 |                          |                |                |
| Dealer Cornig.                |                          |                |                |
|                               |                          |                | Close          |
|                               |                          |                |                |

A confirmation message will appear upon successful completion of the firmware update.

### 12.1.2 Update Firmware

| Firmware Updates   | x |
|--|---|
| Please select the file from which Otoport firmware will be updated.  |   |
| Existing Product Version 3.25.1.18  Filepath C:\Users\richardg\Desktop\Otoport firmware\ARM\ABR\Encrypted_DATfiles\Lite_TE +ABR_V3.25.1.18.dat |   |
| Dupdate Firmware   |   |
| Services<br>Format Otoport Database Files Image Otoport Log Files Update Config.   |   |
| Dealer Config.   |   |
| Close  |   |

The firmware file will be provided by Otodynamics or your dealer. Copy it onto your PC and note the location.

When **Update Firmware** is shown, click on the filepath folder icon, navigate to the location of your update file and select the file.

The Existing Product version of the Otoport is shown.

Select **Update Firmware** to update the Otoport firmware. The new version is displayed in a pop-up window before the update begins. Ensure the new product version is the correct version supplied by Otodynamics or your dealer. Select **OK** to continue. A confirmation message will appear upon successful completion of the firmware update.

If you do not wish to update, select **Cancel** to exit the firmware area.

Note:

If the firmware update fails and subsequent attempts are required, it is recommended that you **Reset** your Otoport to factory settings (see your Otoport manual for details).

### 12.2 Services

| Format Otoport | Database Files | Image Otoport | Log Files | Update Config. |
|----------------|----------------|---------------|-----------|----------------|
| Dealer Config. |                |               |           |                |
|                |                |               |           |                |
|                |                |               |           |                |

The **Services** functions are for technical support use only. There is no need to use these functions unless you are explicitly requested to do so.

**Format Otoport** reformats the Otoport database permanently, deleting any data held in the database. Data cannot be recovered after a format has been performed. Format takes around three minutes to complete for black and white Otoports, but a matter of seconds for the colour device.

**Database files** downloads the entire database content to PC. This process takes around 10 minutes.

**Image Otoport** downloads a complete copy of the internal memory of the Otoport.

**Log Files** downloads a copy of data files containing information about the use of the Otoport.

Update Config enables Otoports to be configured for different functions.

**Dealer Config** enables Otoports to be setup for use by different Otodynamics dealers.



# 13 User profiles



Otolink can be set up so that important areas can be made secure by user login and password protection. The downloading data function is available to all users. The **User Profiles** area controls login security. Select **User Profiles** to turn this function on or off or to add or edit user details.

Note:

This area is available to users with Otolink Admin rights only.

# 13.1 Otolink user security

Click on the **Yes** or **No** radio buttons at the top of the screen to turn user security on or off.

| 1 User Profiles        |                                   |                         |                              |                      | ×              |
|------------------------|-----------------------------------|-------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------|----------------|
| lf you sel<br>least on | ect to activate<br>e administrate | Otolink U<br>or user be | ser Security<br>fore exiting | y please<br>this win | add at<br>dow. |
| Turr                   | n on Otolink User                 | Security?               | ● Yes                        | O No                 |                |
| User Name              | Password                          | Adr                     | ninistrator Date /           | Added                |                |
|                        |                                   |                         |                              |                      | - 1            |
|                        |                                   |                         | L Edit                       |                      | X Delete       |
| ŭ                      | Jsername                          |                         |                              | -                    |                |
| F                      | Password                          |                         |                              |                      |                |
| Confirm F              | Password                          |                         |                              |                      |                |
| Adn                    | nin Rights                        | © Yes                   | • No                         |                      |                |
| G                      | Reset User                        |                         | Save U                       | lser Details         |                |
|                        |                                   |                         |                              |                      | Close          |

## 13.2 Adding and editing users

If User security is turned on the full User Profiles window will open.

To add a user enter a **User Name** and **Password** and select whether or not the user will have **Admin Rights**.

Users who have Admin Rights will have access to all areas within Otolink.

Users who do not have Admin Rights will only have access to the Data viewer, About & Language and Worklist (if available) areas of Otolink.

When the details are complete select Save User Details.

To edit a user click on the **User Name** in the table and then on the **Edit** button. Then alter the fields below the table as necessary. When the details are complete select **Save User Details**.

Reset User will undo edits made to the selected user.

Note that at least one user account must have administrator privileges.

When all users are complete Close the window.

## 13.3 Otolink Login

| 🕯 Otolink Login             | $\mathbf{x}$   |
|-----------------------------|--|
| Please enter y<br>(Admin ri | our Otolink Username and Password.<br>ights may be required to access certain<br>areas of Otolink software.) |
| Username                    | SMITH  |
| Password                    |  |
| X Cance                     | el Login to Otolink  |

When **Otolink User Security** is switched on, the user will be required to login to Otolink with their user name and password. Login is required to access the **Otolink Suite**, **Data Viewer** and the **User Profiles**.

Select the correct **Username** from the drop-down list and type the password into the **Password** field.

Select Login to Otolink to enter the software. Select Cancel Login to exit this screen.

# 14 Worklist



**Patient Worklist** enables lists of patients to be entered on a PC before uploading them to the Otoport. Partial or full patient details can be entered in the worklist.

The format of the worklist will depend on the type of Otoport connected to Otolink (some Otoports allow fuller patient details to be entered than others). The formats have either a row per patient (fig 1) or a column per patient (fig 2), as illustrated below.

| le              |                      |   |             |   |             |         |
|-----------------|----------------------|---|-------------|---|-------------|---------|
| Add New Patient | Collete (0 Selected) |   |             |   | Patient 1 o | ut of 4 |
| Г               | Г                    |   |             |   |             |         |
| Patient ID      | ABCD123456           |   | ABCD123457  |   | ABCD123458  |         |
| =amily Name     | Brown                |   | Smith       |   | Jones       |         |
| First Name      | Charlotte            |   | George      |   | Anna        |         |
| Date of Birth   | 14/09/2010           |   | 14/09/2010  |   | 14/09/2010  |         |
| Gender          | Female               | - | Male        | - | Female      | -       |
| Mother          |                      |   |             |   |             |         |
| Notes           |                      |   |             |   |             |         |
| Risks           | Unknown              |   | Unknown     |   | Unknown     |         |
| Location        | In Patient           | - | In Patient  | - | In Patient  | -       |
| Facility        | Hospital             | - | Hospital    | - | Hospital    | -       |
| NICU            | Yes                  | - | No          | - | No          | -       |
| Consent         | Full                 | - | Screen Only | - | Unknown     | -       |
| <               |                      |   |             |   |             | >       |

|                              |         |               |        |   | Pa          | atien | t3o  | ut of 3 |
|------------------------------|---------|---------------|--------|---|-------------|-------|------|---------|
| <ul> <li>ID/Notes</li> </ul> | Name    | Date Of Birth | Gender |   | Location    | -     | NICU |         |
| 7 12392                      | Bloggs  | 21/07/1980    | Male   | - | In Patient  | -     | No   | -       |
| 432234                       | Dilbert | 04/11/2008    | Male   | - | Out Patient | -     | No   | -       |
| 44223                        | Hardy   | 12/11/2011    | Female | - | In Patient  | -     | No   | -       |
|                              |         |               |        |   |             |       |      |         |

Entering data on a PC keyboard prior to a clinic can save time spent entering details on the Otoport in the presence of the patient.

If there is an Otoport connected to the PC when the worklist area is opened then any patients on the worklist held on the Otoport will be downloaded to the PC. This list can then be edited and appended before being uploaded back to the Otoport.

The worklist area can be opened without an Otoport connected. New lists can be compiled and previously saved lists can be edited.

If an Otoport is connected to the PC after the worklist area has been opened then the user has the option to merge the list on the Otoport with the list on the PC (see **Merge Selection** below).

### Add a new patient

To add a new patient to the worklist select **Add New Patient** then enter the details in the boxes on the right hand column (or bottom row). The current selected and total number of patients in the worklist are shown above the patient table.

#### Note:

The items in the pull down menus such as **Risks** and **Facility** (when available) cannot be edited from within the worklist area. These options can be changed in the **Otoport Configuration** area (see chapter 16).

To edit a patient's details select the patient in the list (using the scroll bar to locate the record if necessary). Then edit the required fields.

To delete a patient from the worklist select the patient from the list by checking the box at the top of the column. Then select **Delete**. Checking the box at the top of the first column showing the header details will select all the patients for deletion. The number of patients selected is shown on the **Delete** button.

### 14.2 Worklist file management

| File |                  |     |      |
|------|------------------|-----|------|
| С    | pen Worklist     |     |      |
| S    | ave Worklist     | ent | 1    |
| ្ប   | pload To Otoport |     | 1    |
| C    | lose             |     | 1000 |

Worklists may be saved to a file and uploaded later.

**Open Worklist...** recalls a file containing a previously saved worklist. You will be prompted to locate and open an existing worklist file. The **Merge Selection** window will be displayed.

The **Merge Selection** area controls which patients from a saved list are included in the current worklist. The **Merge Selection** function is also

used if you connect an Otoport with the worklist open. You then select which patients from the Otoport worklist should be merged with the current worklist.

| ABCD123456 Brown<br>ABCD123457 Smith<br>ABCD123458 Jones<br>ABCD123458 Wikite | I23456         Brown           I23457         Smith           I23458         Jones           I23459         White | Patient ID | Family Name |
|---|---|------------|-------------|
| ABCD123457 Smith<br>ABCD123458 Jones<br>ABCD123459 White                      | 123457         Smith           123458         Jones           123459         White                                | ABCD123456 | Brown       |
| ABCD123458 Jones  | 123458 Jones<br>123459 White  | ABCD123457 | Smith       |
| ABCD123459 White  | 123459 White  | ABCD123458 | Jones       |
| ADCD123433 WHILE  |   | ABCD123459 | White       |
|   |   |            |             |
|   |   |            |             |

Select which entries from the worklist file you wish to import to the current worklist by checking the box beside the Patient ID. Alternatively, check the box in the top left corner of the list to select all the patients for import.

The number of patients selected is shown on the **Merge** button. When you have selected the patients you wish to import click **Merge**.

**Save Worklist...** saves the whole worklist to a file in CSV (Comma Separated Value) format. You will be prompted to choose a filename and location. CSV files can be opened and edited in other applications such as Excel and Notepad. It is therefore possible to create worklists independently of Otolink in this file format, but the patient details need to be in the same order as the file created by Otolink.

When you are happy with the changes you have made to the worklist, selecting **Upload to Otoport** sends the worklist to the Otoport connected. A window with a progress bar will be displayed while the worklist is uploaded.

If you do not wish to save the changes you have made to the Otoport click on **Close**. A prompt requires confirmation that changes should not be uploaded.

# 15 Custom settings



In **Custom Settings** it is possible to configure various automation preferences.

# 15.1 Start-up/Shutdown



102 | CHAPTER FIFTEEN Custom settings

### 15.1.1 Action when Otolink closed

When Otolink is closed, it is possible to configure whether to completely **Shutdown** the software, or to **Minimise To Tray**, so Otolink will be running ready for an Otoport to be connected. If **Shutdown** is selected, Otolink will need to be started by one of the Desktop shortcuts.

A further option is to configure whether Otolink automatically starts when your PC starts. Following automatic Otolink configuration, after connecting your Otoport for the first time, the setting is **On** by default. If set to **Off**, Otolink will not autostart and should be started with the desktop shortcuts. This setting is Windows user specific.

This option is not available if **Shutdown** is the action selected when Otolink is closed.

### 15.2 Wired Download

| tart-up/Shutdown     | Wired Download | Bluetooth Download |  |
|----------------------|----------------|--------------------|--|
| ito Download On Conr | nect           |                    |  |
| Options              | On             | © Off              |  |
|                      | New Test Only? | 🔘 Yes 🛛 🕘 No       |  |
|                      | Allow Delete?  | 🔘 Yes 🛛 🔘 No       |  |
|                      | Auto Print?    | 🔿 Yes 💿 No         |  |
|                      |                |                    |  |

### 15.2.1 Auto download On Connect

Turn on **Auto download On Connect** and when you connect your Otoport any data on the device will automatically be downloaded to the Otolink database, without the **Data Download** window appearing.

There are three options available to further customise this process. Switch the settings to **Yes** to turn them on or **No** to turn them off.

Switch on **New Test Only** to download new data only to the Otolink database.

Switch on **Allow Delete** to be given the option to erase your Otoport data following download to Otolink.

Setting **Auto Print** to on will automatically print all the tests downloaded to your configured printer or PDF output. Set print options to **Customise printouts** (section 7.2).

Press Save to keep your changes or Cancel to discard them.

### 15.3 Bluetooth Download

| Start-up/Shutdown   | Wired Download                   | Bluetooth Download      |
|---------------------|----------------------------------|-------------------------|
| luetooth Monitoring |                                  |                         |
| Options             | On                               | © Off                   |
| opiiono             | Auto Print?                      | ○ Yes                   |
| Opt                 | en Data∨iewer after<br>download? | ⊙ Yes io No             |
|                     |                                  | Bluetooth Device Status |



### 15.3.1 Bluetooth monitoring

If you have a colour Otoport Lite, Otocheck or Otoport DP+TE, and it is fitted with a Bluetooth module, it is possible to download test data wirelessly using Bluetooth. You can tell if a Bluetooth module is fitted, as a 'T' is included at the end of the serial number on the rear of the Otoport.

It is also necessary for the PC to have a Bluetooth module installed. Laptops often come with Bluetooth included, but in most cases for desktop PCs a module will need to be added and are commonly in 'USB dongle' form.

Steps to set up Bluetooth communication

Ensure the Bluetooth device on your PC has the drivers installed correctly and is enabled.

Check that the Otoport has a Bluetooth module fitted and the PC-Load option is available on the main Records menu on the Otoport. Otherwise, change this via the Config>Setup>Bluetooth option.

The next step below is to pair the Otoport Bluetooth module with the module on your PC or laptop. It is recommended that Otolink is not running during this process, so **Exit** the program.



With the Otoport turned ON, pair the Otoport's Bluetooth module with the PC's by adding the Otoport as a device in Windows 'Devices and printers' area in the Control panel, or use any custom Bluetooth software that maybe pre-installed on the PC. The Otoport will be listed as Otoport-GSN, where GSN will be the code specific to your Otoport. You will need the password **4679** to complete the connection.

Start Otolink, go to the **Otolink Suite** and turn on Bluetooth monitoring in **Custom settings**.

Here you can also configure whether to automatically **Print** and/or **Automatically open the dataviewer** after download.

Save the settings or use cancel to discard them.

After a short while Otolink icons should turn green to indicate a connection is established and your Otoport will indicate this too with **PC-Load** turning green.

The Bluetooth download is initiated using the **PC-Load** function on the Otoport. See the Otoport manual for more detail.

You can check the connection status of all Otoports via the Bluetooth device status button in **Custom settings** and **About&Language**.

|   | - |
|---|---|
| ddress Otoport Paired Current Status      | - |
| 80:41:99:D3) 'Otoport-Y8S' True Connected |   |

The tick/check box enables or disables the selected device from being connected to Otolink.

Mac address lists the unique address of the Otoport's Bluetooth module.

Otoport lists the Otoport devices detected and their GSN code.

**Paired** shows whether the detected device has been paired with the Bluetooth module on the PC.

Current status provides information on the connection status with Otolink.

A successfully connected device is listed with a green background.



# 16 Otoport configuration



The **Otoport Config** area allows test parameters to be set on a PC before upload to the Otoport. Test set-ups can be saved on the PC enabling other Otoports to be rapidly set up, or restored to the saved settings.

The **Otoport Config** area is divided into four sub areas: **Test Modes**, **Users**, **Facility & Risk** and **Other Options**. Each area may be selected by clicking on the relevant title at the top left of the screen.

When changes are complete you can **Upload to Otoport**, save the configuration to a **File** or discard the changes by selecting **Close**.

Notes:

- 1 **Otoport Config** is only available on higher level Otoport models and is not available to Otolink users without **Admin Rights**.
- 2 Some areas of the Otoport configuration cannot be changed if there are records in the database or the worklist.

## 16.1 Test modes

| Î Otoport Configuration<br>Fie  | × |
|---|---|
| Test Modes Users Facility & Risk Other Options  |   |
| TEOAE DPOAE DPOAE Zoom DPOAE Growth Mode Screening  |   |
| Mode Name     Screening       Stim Level     84     dBPe       Stim Level     84     dBPe       Stim Range     1     dBSPL       Noise Reject     52     dBSPL       Ring Alert     -20     dBSPL       Max Time     300     sec       Max NLo     260     0#       Resp Window     3-9 ms        6K Band     0ff |   |
| Upload To Otoport   |   |

The **Test Modes** area allows the user to set the parameters which are set in the **Test Setup** area on the Otoport.

The test types available on your Otoport are displayed as tabs below the Test Modes title. Click on the test type you wish to edit.

The modes available on the Otoport for this test type are displayed below the test type tabs. Select a mode to edit from the pull down menu. A switch next to the Mode menu allows each mode to be turned On or Off. Modes which are On are available for selection at the start of a test. Modes which are switched Off are not available for test. Tabs for each of the configuration areas for the selected mode are displayed below the mode menu.

See your Otoport manual for more details on the configuration areas. Each parameter may be edited as required within the permitted range. The configuration areas are set out in the same order as the Otoport test setup area. See the **Test Setup** section in your Otoport manual.

### 16.2 Users

| i Otoport Configuration                        |             |                 |       |            |            |                 |
|--|-------------|-----------------|-------|------------|------------|-----------------|
| File   |             |                 |       |            |            |                 |
| Test Modes Users Facility & Risk Other Options |             |                 |       |            |            |                 |
| 🛛 🔏 Add New U                                  | ser X Delet | te (0 Selected) | Log   | in C       | Dff        | User 1 out of 1 |
| ☐ Name   | Password    | User ID         | Admin | Location   | Facility   | NICU            |
| ☐ Admin  |             | ADN             | Yes 🖣 | In Patient | ▼ Hospital | ▼ No ▼          |
|  |             |                 |       |            | <b>A</b> - |                 |
|  | Upload      | To Otoport      |       |            | Close      |                 |

The **Users** area controls who can use the Otoport and what functions they can use. The Login switch in the top centre of the tab turns the Otoport Login function On and Off.
To add a user select **Add New User**. Enter a **Name**, **Password** and threecharacter **User ID**. Select whether or not the user will have **Admin Rights** on the Otoport. Choose a default **Location**, **Facility** and **NICU** status for the user.

To edit a user click on that user in the table and make changes to each field as necessary.

To delete a user from the list select the user by checking the box at the left of the row. Then select **Delete**. Checking the box at the top of the first row will select all users for deletion.

Note that at least one Otoport user account must have Admin rights.

#### 16.3 Facility & Risk

| Î Otoport Configuration                  | ×  |
|--|--|
| File                                     |  |
| Test Modes Users Facility & Risk Other O | ptions   |
| Facilities                               | Risks  |
| (max 4)                                  | (max 15)   |
| Hospital<br>Clinic<br>Home<br>Otodynamic | Congenital I<br>Craniofacial<br>Family hist<br>Nicu 48 hour<br>Bacterial M<br>IPPV5 days<br>Jaundice<br>Neurc-degen<br>Syndrome<br>Parent hist<br>Low weight<br>Low Apgar<br>(20 weeks<br>Rubells<br>CMV |
| 🕑 Upload To Otoport                      | Close  |

This area sets up the facility and risk factors that are available on the Otoport. See the Otoport manual **Management** section for more details. You will not be able to edit this area if there are patients in the Otoport database or Worklist.

Facilities are set on the left of the screen.

Delete existing facilities by selecting the facility in the table and then clicking the **Delete** (red X) button. Note that default facilities are included in **User** details so deleting facilities may require user details to be edited.

Add facilities by entering the new **Facility** name and then clicking the **Add** (green arrow) button. A maximum of four facilities can be listed on the Otoport.

Risk factors are displayed on the right of the screen. Risk factors are added and removed from the list in the same manner as Facilities. A maximum of 15 risks can be listed on the Otoport.

#### 16.4 Other Options

| 1 Otoport Configuration                                     |
|---|
| File  |
| Test Modes Users Facility & Risk Other Options              |
| ID Input ABC & 123<br>Site ID<br>Device ID<br>DP Stim Cel 1 |
| Jupload To Otoport Sclose                                   |

The **ID** input sets the characters available when IDs are entered on the Otoport. When adding Patient Details characters will be restricted for Patient ID input according to the chosen format.

The Site ID is a three-letter site identifer and will be saved to each test

record. The ID cannot be changed until all data has been downloaded from the database and the database has been cleared.

The **Device ID** is a six-letter device identifier and will be saved to each test record. This could be used to give simple identification of a unit if multiple units are used in one site.

#### 16.4.1 DP stim cal

The calibration method used for DP stimuli above 5kHz has been enhanced in later versions of Otoport firmware (versions 1.14.0.0 onwards and 3.18.0.0 onwards). This enhanced calibration is on by default and **DP stim cal** will show **1**.

If necessary for comparison with old recorded data, the Otoport software can be switched to use the old calibration method by setting **DP stim cal** to **Off**. We do not recommend permanently setting the Otoport to the old calibration method, as dBSPL values will be less accurate.

Note:

This option is only available for Otoports with DPOAE facilities.

#### <sup>16.5</sup> Saving configuration changes

To upload all changes made to the Otoport configuration, select the **Upload to Otoport** button at the bottom of the window. A window will indicate progress as the new configuration is loaded.

When this window closes configuration of the Otoport is complete.

If you do not wish to save the changes you have made to the Otoport, click on **Close**. A prompt requires confirmation before changes are discarded.

16.7

| 16.6 | Configu | iration | File | menu |
|------|---------|---------|------|------|
|------|---------|---------|------|------|



The Configuration **File** menu is available from the top left corner of the Otoport Configuration window.

**Open From File** will load an Otoport configuration file (.EEPROM) from a location on the PC. This may then be uploaded to an Otoport.

**Save to File** will save an Otoport configuration to a location on the PC. This can be reloaded to an Otoport at a later date.

Upload To Otoport will upload the configuration changes.

**Close** will exit the **Otoport Config** area. Changes to configuration will not be loaded to the Otoport.

## Configuration for Otocheck LE

| 1 Otoport Configuration |           |       | × |
|-------------------------|-----------|-------|---|
| Configuration           |           |       |   |
| -Administration Righ    | its<br>On | © Off |   |
| <b>(3</b> )             | ancel     | Save  |   |

The configuration section for the Otocheck LE controls access to the configuration section on the Otocheck device. Select **Off** to lock access to settings. Select **On** to allow users to make changes.

# 17 Troubleshooting

#### 17.1 Otolink communication problems

If Windows starts the New Hardware Wizard, or indicates that Otoport drivers are not present, then manually install the USB drivers by following the instructions in section 2.6.2.

Otolink installation problems can arise from a number of different areas. A good starting point is to examine the status of the USB controllers using the windows Device Manager with the Otoport plugged into the PC (accessed from My Computer>Properties).

If the Otoport is not listed in Device Manager then Microsoft Windows has not detected the Otoport hardware. USB devices are dynamically detected each time they are connected to a PC, not just the first time of connection.

Some of the reasons that the Otoport USB will not be detected include:

Otoport is not connected to the user's PC

Connect to the PC and check to see if Windows now detects new hardware following the installation instructions in the Otoport manual.

The USB socket on the PC is faulty

Try another USB socket on the PC and check to see if Windows now detects new hardware following the installation instructions in the Otoport manual.

The USB cable being used to connect the Otoport is faulty

Try another USB cable to connect the Otoport to the PC and check to see if Windows now detects new hardware following the installation instructions in the Otoport manual.

User's PC is faulty or incorrectly set up

A good check would be to connect the Otoport to another PC (ideally a different make/brand of PC) and start the installation process from the beginning.

Fault with the Otoport USB

A good check would be to connect the Otoport to another PC (ideally a different make/brand of PC) and start the installation process from the beginning. If the device is still not detected there may be an issue with the Otoport system.

If the Otoport is listed on the Device Manager next to a yellow question mark, it means the device drivers have not been installed properly. Ensure the Otolink CD is placed in your CD-ROM drive then right click on the listed Otoport device and select Update Driver. The New Hardware Wizard will be initiated. Follow the instructions in section 2.6 to progress through the driver installation.

If the Otoport is listed correctly on the Device Manager but does not function then some part of the driver or Otolink software may not have installed correctly. Try removing and then reinstalling the software drivers or Otolink software.

Connectivity break during use

If the software loses connectivity with the Otoport, it will be necessary to exit the program, disconnect the Otoport and wait five seconds before reconnecting. After this, restart the program and follow the on screen instructions.

If your problems persist, please contact your local IT Support, your Otodynamics distributor or Otodynamics Support.

### 17.2 Cannot access Otolink database and Otoport not recognised when connected via USB

Check to see if there are any other users logged onto your PC. If there are, then either ask them to log off, or ask them to close down Otolink in their account.

Otolink can only be accessed by one user at a time. If there are other

users logged in that are using Otolink then their account will prevent you from using Otolink.

This situation most often arises if you have intentionally switched users or if the PC has gone into 'sleep' mode and a new user logged in when it was woken up.

An easy way to check if other users are logged into your PC is to open the **Windows Task Manager** (right click on the task bar at the bottom of your screen and select **Start the Task Manager**). Select the **Users** tab and check if more than one user is listed. The screenshot below shows a single listed user.

| 📲 Windows Task Manager 📃 🔲 💌 💌                     |  |      |        |             |           |       |  |  |
|--|--|------|--------|-------------|-----------|-------|--|--|
| <u>F</u> ile                                       | <u>File Options View H</u> elp                               |      |        |             |           |       |  |  |
| Ap   | Applications Processes Services Performance Networking Users |      |        |             |           |       |  |  |
|  | A  |      |        |             |           |       |  |  |
|  | User   | ID   | Status | Client Name | e Session |       |  |  |
|  | 🐙 Oliver   | B 1  | Active |             | Console   |       |  |  |
|  |  | Disc | onnect | Logoff      | Send Me   | ssage |  |  |
| Processes: 210 CPU Usage: 26% Physical Memory: 77% |  |      |        |             |           |       |  |  |



# 18 Symbol explanations



Training required



Otodynamics' factory address

# 19 Index

# A

About & Language 18, 20, 87 ABR results 43 ABR waveform 46 Adding and Editing Users 95 Archive 68 Ascii export 66 Auto download on Connect 101 Auto-export 60 Automatic updates 88

## B

Backup 70 Battery Charge 22 Bluetooth 88, 103 Browse CD 10

## С

CD menu 10 Checkfit Stimulus 46,47 Communication problems 113 Config 112 Configuration 20 Connecting the Otoport 14 Customisation\Printing 54

### D

Database files 93 Database functions 69 Data Download 17, 18, 22 Data management 58 Data review 32 Data Viewer 18, 20, 27 Delete 69 Delete test data from the Otoport? 23 Download 17.22.23 Download cable 14 DP at 80 41 DP Growth 40 DPOAE 38 **DPOAE results** 37 DP stim cal 111 DP threshold 42 Driver installation 13 Duration 34, 38

#### Ε

Ear 34, 37, 40 Edit details 72 Edit History 74 Empty 71 End Freq. 37 Export 59 Export filtered tests 59 Export to PDF 66 118 | CHAPTER NINETEEN | Index

#### F

Facility & Risk 109 File name 35, 38, 41 Finding test records 28 Firmware Updates 20 Fit R2 41 Fit Size 38, 41 Format Otoport 93

#### G

GDT 82 Graph 36, 39, 42 GSN 35

## Η

Hi\*Track 60 Hi\*Track pick lists 61

# 

Impedance 45 Import 68 Installation problems 113 Installing ILO V6 9 Installing PC software 8 Install Otolink 10, 11

#### L

Language 89 Login 96

### Μ

Manuals 20

# Ν

NCHAM 60 NHi/NLo 35 NOAH 4 76 Noise 34 Noise mode 37,40 Noise reject 34,38,40

# 0

Open EZ•Screen/V6 after Download? 23 Opening Otolink 16 Other Options 110 Otocheck LE 21, 112 Otolink 8 Otolink communication problems 113 Otolink Login 96 Otolink Suite 18, 19, 21 Otolink user security 94 Otoport Configuration 20 Otoport Download 22 Otoport download options 23 Otoport ID 35, 38, 41

#### Ρ

Password 95 Patient details 33 Patient Worklist 20,97 PC specifications 8 Power line noise 44 Print 2 Selected 52,53 Print button 49 Print format 54 Printing 49 Print Options 57 Print pair 51 Print Patient 53 Print (single test) 50 Probe ID 35.38.41 Protocol 34, 37, 40 Purging 68

#### Otolink | **119** User Manual |

# R

Reproducibility 35 Resolution 37 Response 36,39 Restore 71 Result 34,37,40

## S

Save Configuration to File 112 Saving configuration to Otoport 111 Selecting a patient to view 29 Selecting individual tests 29 Services 93 Shortcut icons 19 Slope 41 Software 8 Start Freq. 37 Stim 35 Stim OK 38,41 Stimulus 35,39,42

# Т

Table 36, 39, 42 Target stim 34, 37 TEOAE 34 TEOAE results 34 Test details 34, 37, 40 Tester ID 35, 38, 41, 44 Test Modes 107 Test parameter 106 Total OAE 40 Transfer filtered tests 67 Tray icon 18

# U

Update Firmware 92 Updates 90 Updates Available 91 User Name 95 User Profiles 20 Users 108 User Security 94

# W

Waveform 36 Worklist 20